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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE W RO

OPERATION REVIEW

In addition to the terminal in Xiao Hu Island of Nansha, Panyu (“XHIT"),
the Group expanded its Guangdong oil and petrochemical terminal
operations to Lisha Island of Shatian Town, Dongguan City, the Dongzhou
International Terminal (“DZIT") which started operations in October this

year. Their operational results were as follows:

EBEE
BESRED/NESZIFR(/NEACED
AEENEHEERA MR AHBRLERR
ER=MPAELD & Z RMEFRFEE (M
Bl ZWBEERSF+ARBEE - &
EZEMT

XHIT DZIT
PRAELE MaE
Operational statistics 2011 2010 Change % 2011
EESTTHT —E——F —Z-ZF By Z—B——F
Liquid product terminal, BRALE RITEH -
storage and transshipment Bz LA R RS
services
Number of vessels visited LK EP==CEt
— foreign — Shgg 197 221 -10.9% 27
— domestic — A E 352 709 -50.4% 59
Number of trucks served to pick up  EWEYZ EEHEH
cargoes 16,660 17,859 -6.7% 2,480
Number of drums filled EREE 46,346 39,711 +16.7% 118
Transshipment volume (metric ton) g #r e (ANE)
— oils — A 11,900 7912 +50.4% 31,315
— petrochemicals — A1t 151,205 152,315 -0.7% 2,009
Port jetty throughput (metric ton) — AESEF M 2 (ANE) 940,312 1,352,000 -30.5% 319,393
Tank farm throughput (metric ton)  BFFEE@EAH S (A1) 1,245,000 1,695,000 -26.5% 405,000

In XHIT, one of its customers, Sinopec Guangdong Oil Products
Company, requested to early terminate the lease agreement for the oil
tanks (“Sinopec Lease”) with a total storage capacity of approximately
241,000 cubic metres since | July 201 1. Coupled with the continuous
drop of imported fuel oil into China, the total port jetty and tank farm
throughput decreased during the year. The number of vessels visited and
trucks served to pick up cargoes also dropped accordingly. Fortunately,
apart from the tanks under the Sinopec Lease, close to 100% of the
storage tanks in XHIT remained being leased-out throughout the year.
Furthermore, there were improvements in the number of drums filled
and transshipment volume of oils in 201 |.

DZIT started its operations in October 201 |. Total 86 tanks were
erected in the tank farm with a storage capacity of approximately 258,000
cubic metres, 180,000 cubic metres of which were for oil products and
78,000 cubic metres were for chemical products. 86% of the tanks were
leased to customers by the end of the year.

R ACEmMS HP—R2%F  PALE
RAmp AR Bk T ——FtA—HE
RAMKIERERZE((RELHAE]D  ZHES
NETTF 48 2 #)241,0003 75 KK 770 - itk
PEIMISME O SIFE TR - 5| BURFEI5E
MEGREHBLE TR - WEARRERE
Yz EEEE AL TR - 3= - BP Akl
ERREEIN - A EN R REEEES
[E ISR 100% ) H AR o ol - SBEREE
MoHREEHET T ——F NG TR -

BMALER -2 ——F+ ARBIRAEE -
A t86EET 17 2 #)258,0003L 7 KW [ TEE £
BrF @R 7 E A 180,000 5 K AR A
78,0003 FKAMEEER - RFE -
B6%MIFRIED L TEP -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Solid chemical warehousing services 2011 2010 Change %
El st B A B R —B——fF —T-TF 1%
Receiving volume (ton) s = (1) 31,594 N/AfER  NA TER
Delivering volume (ton) HEE () 27,650 N/AT@EE NATER
Apart from the liquid business in XHIT as mentioned above, the & _bitt/NRACEBRILESIN - LA NEER

warehouse and logistic centre for solid chemical products located in Xiao
Hu Island (the “Solid Warehousing Centre”) has started its operations
since January this year. The lease-out rate was 52% by the end of the
year. By the end of first quarter of 2012, 80% of the total floor areas
available for rent has been leased out to customers.

Operating financials
The Group's reportable segments represent XHIT and DZIT. The
breakdown of turnovers of XHIT and DZIT are as follows:

Bt EReERRRO (B EFR])
ERFR— ARABEAEE - RFEMHEHE
A%  R_E—_FF—FK 0%
B EEEmECETER -

R
REBEMARES A NEALERRMNAE
E o NRACERRMA(CE 2 & 5E5ERA MM
T

XHIT DZIT
PRALE FMALE
2011 2010 2011
—B2——F —E-TF —B2——F
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %  HK$000 %
TERT % TET % TERT %
Terminal, storage and TEeE - IFTFEUR
transshipment services s AR 7S 108,652 88.0 152,811 95.7 21,303 99.5
Port income AOUA 5,174 4.2 6,804 4.3 108 0.5
Solid chemical warehousing  [ElB&{LE R A EWRA N/A N/A N/A N/A
income 9,647 7.8 TEA TEA ~EA ~EA

With the impact of the proposed early termination of the Sinopec

Lease, the turnover XHIT from the provision of terminal, storage and
transshipment facilities dropped by 28.9% from HK$152.8 million to
HK$108.7 million during the year. Notwithstanding the decrease in leasing
income for the second half of the year, there was an increase in handling
income due to the increase in terminal operating services provided to
the customers and the appreciation in Renminbi yuan (“RMB") during
the year. Nevertheless, the port income recorded a decrease of 24.0%
from HK$6.8 million to HK$5.2 million. The slide was mainly due to the
decrease in terminal throughput for the year.

The DZIT in Dongguan was permitted to operate in late third quarter
of 2011 and started business in last quarter of the year. Over 80% of the
storage tanks in the newly built terminal were rented out by the end of
the year. It contributed to the Group’s results with terminal storage and
transshipment income of HK$2 1.4 million (2010: HK$ Nil).
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During the year, Solid Warehousing Centre generated revenue of HK$9.6
million, with 52% of the total floor area being rented to various customers

by the end of the year.

The Group recorded a segment loss of HK$84.6 million for the year
versus a segment profit of HK$94.5 million for 2010 (for XHIT segment
alone). The decrease was mainly due to the drop in rental income for
the oil tanks under the Sinopec Lease for the second half of the year.
Furthermore, the Solid Warehousing Centre incurred operating losses
in the start-up months. Besides, there was a loss of HK$28.1 million in
DZIT, which was mainly due to lower utilization rates for the start-up
months of which the income generated was unable to cover the total
of its direct costs and operating expenses, finance costs on bank loans
and deprecation of its facilities. As mentioned above, the lease out rate
has been improving and 86% of the tanks were leased to customers by
end of the year. In addition, the general inflation in the PRC impacted
our operating cost and the cease of capitalization of finance costs on
bank loans upon commencement of operations for DZIT and Solid
Warehousing Centre has also affected our bottom line. For details of the

segment reporting, please refer to note 3(b) on page 64 to 68.

OUTLOOK

. Liquid Product Terminal Business
Despite the early termination of the rental lease as requested
by Sinopec, the operations in XHIT remained stable, all of its
petrochemical tanks were rented out to customers. The Group
is pursuing with utmost effort to maintain the captioned lease
being executed continuously. However, in order to mitigate the
impact, XHIT has started to rent out some of the oil tanks to other
customers and it is expected approximately 60,000 cubic metres
of these tanks to be leased to customers by the second quarter of
2012.

With the opening of DZIT, the geographic coverage of the
Group expanded to a wider range in the region. This gives the
Group greater flexibilities to offer a wider range of choices to
our customers. More customers can be reached with state of art
equipment and facilities to suit their business requirements in terms
of product range, mode of operation, logistic arrangements, etc.
Back up with the unused land, larger docking capacity and wider
scope of product, especially gas products, in DZIT, it is envisaged
that more services and storage space can be offered to various

customers in coming years.

FR - BEAETROHRIOB BT K -
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P o
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RURBHEHEENARGEERY - HIRTT
BRGERE 2 IS AR R E R HEITE o 0 AT
it AR RE R kE BT REKAT
TFEFS o i PENEEREWRTER
MeEEiA - BRMNAEEREEEFR L
FIR &8 - HIRFTEFREM M BR AL 1
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Notwithstanding the commencement of business in DZIT, the
current storage capacity of 258,000 cubic metres is still far from the
maximum capacity the terminal can be built. The Group is looking
into plans to expand the DZIT terminal with tailor-made new
storage tanks and equipment to cater various market environment.
With higher utilization of the full capacity in DZIT, the margin
can be improved as average fixed costs being diluted, especially
depreciation and amortization charges. Apart from the storage
capacity, the docking capabilities of the port jetty in DZIT enabled
the terminal to handle larger vessels which is our unique capacity
among peers in the region. It is therefore optimistic for the Group
to expect to get edges in the coming years.

Solid Warehousing Centre

The Group’s expansion of its business into solid chemical
warehousing provided a wider scope and diversification in the
industry. The Group insisted its policy in maintaining high standards
in safety and environmental protection when building the Solid
Warehousing Centre despite the market was fragmented and there
were room of improvement in enforcement of these standards
from various bureaus. It targeted to serve high end customers
who put higher emphasis in safety and quality of services in their
logistic operators. In this regard, it started with a modest utilization
of its capacity. Nonetheless, the Centre successfully attracted
quality customers and is envisaged to fill about 80% of its storage
capacity by the end of first quarter of 2012. The Group is therefore
conservatory optimistic for its solid product business in the future.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Despite the opening of DZIT and Solid Warehousing Centre during the
year, the Group’s turnover decreased by HK$14.7 million, representing
a drop of 9.2% to HK$144.9 million (2010: HK$159.6 million). The Solid
Warehousing Centre generated turnover of HK$9.6 million and DZIT
provided HK$2 1.4 million new revenue to the Group. However, turover
generated from XHIT dropped by HK$45.7 million, mainly due to the
early termination of Sinopec Lease since | July 201 1.

In terms of operating profit, the Group suffered a gross operating loss of
HK$ 1 18.0 million and recorded a negative net profit margin of 81.5%. It
was mainly attributable to the loss of leasing income in respect of oil tanks
under Sinopec Lease for the second half of the year and an impairment
loss recognised on the related accrued rental receivable arising from initial
rent free period of HK$109.5 million. Furthermore, the operating costs
due to the lower capacity utilization in the start-up periods in both Solid
Warehousing Centre and DZIT impacted the operating margin. The
position was improved as the utilization of both the Solid Warehousing
Centre and DZIT increased towards the end of the year. The Solid
Warehousing Centre has been in positive operating margin since June
2011, The increase in XHIT operating costs and administration expenses
were attributable partly to the general inflation in the PRC, which
impacted particularly on staff costs, maintenance and other overheads.
LBIT and LBITDA for the year were HK$!118.0 million (2010: EBIT
of HK$64.2 million) and HK$55.9 million (2010: EBITDA of HK$93.6
million) respectively. Besides, finance costs increased by HK$24.6 million
as the interest started to charge to the income statement when both
Solid Warehousing Centre and DZIT started to operate during the vyear.
The basic and diluted loss per share for the year were 3.59 Hong Kong
cents (2010: earnings per share of 0.99 Hong Kong cent).

g ez
BEFANENACERECEEFRORFAE -
REBLEIERD0I47EBTE 1491EB T
(Z2—ZF : 159%EBT) + TF2% - E1L
BERLEEMNACED B ARE@EREE
BR960E BT 2, 140B B TTRFTIA - B/ R A
LM AR 457088 7T  TERARA
—E——F+A-BARPARERILTES -

EEFENBERE - AEELEEIBBREIS
BAETT » WERIS8ISURFEHEE - EXER
AR THFREFACHERR T HENTEE
WA REERE BhREs Ve HBREEENTER
FEUAE S RE 1 095 B TTATER  oh » @R
Bt RO REMNECERLIER - R
RIESIBUSE T BRI R FE - B EP L
MEMALEMERERFRAERA - ik
NERNE - BT ——FXAMUK - B{kE
ERLERSELEFEE - NEALEL
ERARITHAZMIERIE DB HEEB
EWRMEB ELESHETRA - #iERE
HEZEERATE - FANZLBTRLBITDAS A
BlLISEET(ZT—ZF : EBIT 0.642B/87T)
K055918 8 T (ZE—Z4 : EBITDA 093618
EIT) o AN - BEME R ER L REMNALE
REAFRGEE - MERBETABRE BB
FANIENN2,460B BT o FAFRER R#HE
BB AISBI(ZE—2F : GREF099HE
i) -

2011 2010 Changes
—E—-F —E-TF it
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
THER FTET %
Turnover EEH 144,884 159,615 -9.2%
Tumover less direct costs and operating expenses BEBHGRERRAR
e 38,754 104,563 -629%
(Loss)/eamings before interest and tax (“LBIT/EBIT") B ERE(EBE) 5
([LBIT/ERIT]) (118,022) 64224 2838%
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders ARRIRRER(EE),/
of the Company A (133,930) 37,020 -461.8%
(Loss)/earnings before interest, tax, depreciation BRFIS - B EREH
and amortisation (“LBITDA/EBITDA”) Al (&5%8) /& Al (TLBITDA/
EBITDA) (55,863) 93,635 -159.7%
Gross margin EF = 26.7% 65.5% -59.2%
Net (loss)/profit margin F(BR),ENE (81.5%) 232% -497.4%
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cents) BREKR(ERE), /BRI (B (3.59) 099 -462.6%
Diluted (loss)/eamings per share (HK cents) SREE(ER), /BRI (3.59) 099 -462.6%
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Capital structure, liquidity and gearing

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's total cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$68.3 million (2010: HK$76.4 million).
Most of the funds were held in Hong Kong dollar, RMB and US dollar.

As at 31 December 2011, the current ratio was O.1'1 (2010: 1.28). The
drop in ratio was attributable to the impairment loss in respect of accrued
rental receivable made during the year amounted to HK$109.5 million
and the change in classification of certain bank loans from long-term
liabilities to current liabilities of HK$1,171.8 million.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 3|1 December 2010 was 2.69 (2010: 1.89)
(defined as total liabilities to total equity). The increase was attributable
to the funds of HK$199.0 million advanced by a director to the Group
to finance the DZIT capital expenditures as well as the Group's working
capital requirement and the loss incurred during the year.

Financial resources

The current cash reserves and recurrent operating cash flow is sufficient
for the daily requirements for current operations. The Group has
successfully arranged external bank loan financing in previous year and
advance from a director this year to support the start-up stage of new
businesses, settlement of the construction costs of the Solid Warehousing
Centre and provide funding for DZIT for its operation. Due attention will
be paid to the capital and debt markets as well as the latest developments
of the Group in order to ensure the efficient use of financial resources.

Finance costs

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$ 1,180 million as
at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$ 1,127 million). During the year, the
borrowing costs capitalized as construction in progress was HK$41.0
million (2010: HK$54.4 million) and the finance cost charged to profit and
loss was approximately HK$25.2 million (2010: HK$679,000).

Taxation

The Group had no assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year. On the other hand, GD (Panyu), the PRC subsidiary of the
Group, is subject to the transitional tax rate of 24% for the year ended
31 December 2011 under the new Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC. There was no tax relief granted to other PRC subsidiaries and the
applicable tax rate is 25%.
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Exposure to fluctuation in exchanges rate and related hedge

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in
Hong Kong dollar, RMB and US dollar. Operating outgoings incurred
by the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB,
which usually receives revenue in RMB as well. Management is of the
opinion that the Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate risks is not
significant, and hedging by means of derivative instruments is considered

unnecessary.

Charge on group assets

Certain of Group's future non-cancellable operating lease receivables
have been collateralized for long-term banking facilities. Apart from this,
as at 3|1 December 201 |, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

Capital commitment

At 3| December 201, the Group had capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the financial statements in respect of terminal
development and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to
HK$20 million (2010: HK$34 million). Meanwhile, the Group had capital
expenditure not contracted for but approved by the board and not
provided in the financial statements in respect of terminal development
and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to approximately
HK$ 145 million (2010: HK$ 161 million) at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 201 I, the Company has issued guarantees to banks in
respect of banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. The directors do
not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under any of the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at
the balance sheet date under the guarantee is the amount of facilities
drawn down by the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantees, being
HK$7,800,000 (2010: HK$10,200,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of the
guarantees as its fair value cannot be reliably measured using observable
market data and its transaction price was $Nil (2010: $Nil).

Final dividend
The directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 52, joined the Company as Chairman in July 2002.
He has many years of experience in China business particularly in the
provision trading of petroleum products and petrochemicals, properties

investments and developments in China.

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, aged 52, joined the Company as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary in 2005 and was appointed
as Executive Director of the Company in April 2006. Mr. Fung is an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 26 years of experience in financial
management for multinational corporations and listed companies and has

worked in major international accounting firms.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 44, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in April 2006. Ms. Liu is also the Deputy Chairlady and Financial
Controller of Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company Limited (“GDPC"),
GD (Panyu) and BB, She joined GDPC in 1997. Prior to that, she
had worked in various government departments and large State-owned
enterprises, including the Audit Office of Guangdong Province, China
Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited, etc. She has more than
20 years of experience in financial management. Ms. Liu graduated from
Zhongshan University in 1989 with a Bachelor's degree in Economics.
Ms. Liu also holds the auditor qualification certificate of speciality and
technology issued by the Ministry of Personnel and National Audit Office
of the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 46, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in August 2007. He joined the Company as Chief Operating
Officer, PRC in 2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics and obtained the qualification of engineer. Mr.
Zhang has many years of experience in petrochemical industry. He has
expertise in petrochemical specialized technology and is familiar with
financial accounting policy and system of the PRC. Mr. Zhang also has in-
depth knowledge in large petrochemical project management. He had
served China Petrochemical Corporation and held various key positions
such as the chief financial officer of the Singapore branch, deputy general
manager and chief financial officer of the Hong Kong branch.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 55, joined the Company as Independent Non-
Executive Director in July 2002. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from The University of East Asia. He is also a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li has held a number of positions
with companies including Sino Land Company Limited and Henderson
Land Development Company Limited. Mr. Li is now a executive director
and financial controller of GDH Limited and the financial controller of
Guangdong Holdings Limited. Besides, he is a non-executive director of
Guangdong Investment Limited and Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited,
an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited,
China South City Holdings Limited and Hong Long Holdings Limited, the

shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 58, joined the Company as Independent Non-
Executive Director in July 2002. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu has over 10 years of investment
banking experience and over 20 years of experience in China business
management. He graduated from Jiaotong University, Shanghai. Mr. Liu
previously worked for China state-owned enterprises including China
Resources Holdings Company Limited and Ministry of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation, the PRC. He also held various key positions in
numerous multinational corporations and listed companies.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 40, joined the Company as Independent
Non-Executive Director in May 2005. He is also the Chairman of
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is a Certified
Public Accountant and works as a director in a certified public accounting
practice. He has extensive experience in general assurance and business
advisory services in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan
has extensive experience in public listings in Hong Kong and Singapore,
mergers and acquisition as well as corporate finance. He holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the Manchester Business School.
Mr. Chan is now the independent non-executive director of Honbridge
Holdings Limited, Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited
and Oriental City Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He is also the independent director
of China Nutrifruit Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
American Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREEAETRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yi You, aged 62, is a director and a deputy general manager
of GD (Panyu). Before he joined GD (Panyu) in 1992, Mr. Chen was a
deputy factory manager for a large petrochemical company in Guangzhou,
the PRC. Mr. Chen has many years of experience in the management of
storage operations for oil and petrochemical products.

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 43, is a director and a general manger of HM
BIEE. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Li has extensive knowledge
and experience in technology and operating management of oil and
petrochemicals storage. He also holds a Master degree in corporate
management. He is now fully responsible for the management of the
construction project and terminal and storage operations in Dongguan.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 38, is a director and a deputy general manager
of GD (Panyu). Mr. Deng obtained his Master’s degree in Business
Administration from University of San Francisco. He joined GD (Panyu)
in 1996. He has many years of experience in trading and marketing in the
business of storage for oil and petrochemical products.

Mr. Yi Xiao Hui, aged 44, is a director and a deputy general manager
of GD (Panyu). Mr. Yi graduated from @AMt TaEERE
2 (currently named as School of Chemical Engineering of East China
University of Science and Technology) and majored in electrical and
mechanical engineering. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1995, and has 20
years of experience in the storage and operation of petrochemical. He
especially has extensive experience in the whole process of construction
and operation of large-scale petrochemical terminals and dangerous
chemicals docks.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 40, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu). Mr.
Han graduated from Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce and majored in
oil storage and transportation operation. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994.
Mr. Han has many years of experience in business operation and import
and export customs of cargoes.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 55, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu).
Before joining GD (Panyu) in 1993, Mr. Cui was the deputy general
manager of sales department of /A {LZEEE A 7). He was engaged in the
sales of petroleum products for a long time and has extensive experience
in the sales and marketing management of petroleum products.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 44, is the deputy financial controller of GD (Panyu)
and a director and a deputy financial controller of S MNEER. He joined
GD (Panyu) in 2006. He is an International Certified Internal Auditor, a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certificate Public Accountants and
has professional accountant qualification in PRC. He has over |5 years
financial management experiences in large state owned enterprises, and
has worked as a senior project manager in a renowned accounting firm.

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business in
compliance with the principles and code provisions (*Code Provisions”)
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange'™)
(“Listing Rules™), except for deviations from Code Provision A4.1 which

is explained below.

Under Code Provision A4.1, the non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Although the
independent non-executive directors do not have a specific term of
appointment, all the existing directors of the Company retire by rotation

at least once every three years pursuant to Article | | 6.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division
of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans
with a view to enhance shareholder interests while the day-to-day

operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations

are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expense, upon making
request to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
BEERRE

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive and the senior

management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive)
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Member of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 3| December 201 |, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011

ERHRERAR —T——FF

ARFZBREER  TRREEDRFETHE
BMRRERABAER -EFTEgEMRICE
FEZBRER T - il S RBEETERNE
AR ZH] » BABRBEEGERIME -

EXgRBTREELSRERABERZIX
¥ ABETTERE -

B
EEGERRARLRGRTE B
SRR RRREHER o

RAREEFFHATESAN

HiTEE

RERE(EFELERITHARE)

HEHRE

BEERL

RESLE

BUHHTEF

FRATEE(FRZRSTIERIELEZRER
HNZERSEKR)

RAE(FHWEZERELTERELZRERIE
HZREHR)

RIKBALE(IEEZRELERERZRENR

HNZEEKE)

EXERERILMERE -

REZE-_T——F+-_A=1+—HILFEZE
AR - BT LTRARE  ZEE
DPZRBIUIRBTES - AP EL BB
WTESAREEERER BB
HEEERMH -

ARFEERERBYIFMTERRIE TR
BRERB B IMEH 2 FEEHEER ° AR
ARG RELMAAMSAREEELIEY
Eol 2REFRITESORBYAL




The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead
in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of directors.

Although the independent non-executive directors do not have a specific
term of appointment, all the existing directors of the Company retire by

rotation at least once every three years.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and

professional development to directors whenever necessary.

Board Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
Six Board meetings were held during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The individual attendance (either in person or through other electronic
means of communication) record of each director at the meetings of the
Board, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee during the year ended 3| December 201 | is set
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out below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings held during
the tenure of directorship
RESREALE BETERRE
Nomination Remuneration Audit

Directors Board Committee = Committee = Committee
g= =g REZEE FHzES ENEEE
Executive Directors HITEE
David An (Chairman of the Board RR(EFESLTEH

and Chief Executive) 1TE#EE) 6/6  NIA i Ul N/A T E A
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas BEH 66 NATEA NATEA NATEA
Liu Zhijun A== 6/6  NATEA NATER NATEA
Zhang Lei RE 66  NATEA NATEA NATERA
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHTEE
Li Wai Keung FERFHZESLE)

(Chairman of audit committee) 6/6 I/ 1/l 22
Liu Jian R HHZRELE)

(Chairman of remuneration committee) 6/6 I/ /1 212
Chan Chun Wai, Tony REE(IEEZEELE)

(Chairman of nomination committee) 6/6 I/ I/l 212
Practices and Conduct of Meetings ERERETA
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14 EEEHBERIRGHRITAH HORXE
days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings, &ESH ERHEMWEZTSEHRATELTH -

reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior executives
whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for directors’ inspection.

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company's Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or

any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A2.1 stipulates that roles of Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

The Company supports the division of responsibility to ensure the
balance of power and authority. However, in view of the fact that the
Group's core business is carried out by its PRC subsidiaries and the fact
that the Chief Operating Officer, China (de facto Chief Executive), who
managed the core business, is a separate person, the Board consider

there is no necessity to a separate Chief Executive at the Group level.

The Board has full confidence in Mr. David An and believes that his
appointment of the posts of chairman and chief executive is beneficial to
the business prospects of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
posted on the Company's website and are available to shareholders upon

request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s

expenses.

Nomination Committee

All the three independent non-executive directors are the members
of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony is the
chairman of the committee.
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Corporate Governance Report
BEERRE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures
for nomination and appointment of directors, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors,
and assessment of the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection

process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 3|
December 201 | to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate to meet the requirements of the business of
the Company.

On 23 March 2011, the Nomination Committee recommended the re-
appointment of Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, Ms. Liu Zhijun and Mr. Li
Wai Keung standing for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 18 May 201 I.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and the three independent non-executive
directors are the members of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Liu
Jian is the chairman of the committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors and the
senior executives. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and

the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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The Remuneration Committee is to review the remuneration policy
and structure and determine the annual remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior executives and other related matters.
The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection and
administration of the human resources data and making recommendations
to the remuneration committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee consults the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive of the
Company about these recommendations on remuneration policy and

structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting to review the
remuneration package of executive directors and senior executives during
the year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
directors (including two independent non-executive director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise) and Mr. Li Wai Keung is
the chairman of the committee. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any

significant or unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the

appointment, reappointment and removal of external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, and risk management system and
associated procedures.

(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
measures, including the functions of account and financial reporting,
reviewing the adequacy of the Group’s human resources,
qualifications and experiences of staffs, training they received and
the relevant budget.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are updated from time to
time and consistent with the terms set out in the Code Provision. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice if considers
necessary.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2011 to review the financial results and reports, financial

reporting, internal control and compliance procedures.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as going

concern.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 201 I.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines™) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the Listing

Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 3| December 201 1.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the

“Independent Auditor's Report” on page 34 and 35.
The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in

respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 201 | was disclosed on page 70.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets, and
reviewing the effectiveness of such on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with
defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility

and authority to the senior management.

The Group's internal control framework, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls is established.
The internal control framework also provides for identification and

management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and
monitoring the system of internal control and for providing assurance
to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its own view on
effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on the information and

assurances provided to it.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company'’s
Articles of Association. Details of such rights and procedures are included
in all circulars to shareholders convening shareholders’ meetings and
will be explained during the proceedings of meetings. All resolutions
proposed at the shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll. The poll
voting results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company immediately after the relevant shareholders’ meetings.

The shareholders' meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer questions at the

shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships ~ AA BI4£4E MNsR 821G & & 2 B M KL EIER < 36F
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular SREEBABSEBBIREEROTEHSE
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of ~ EHI¥I & WS HE THEARRIZERE - K&
the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in ~ EHHBE A EREE R REFERIE -

an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a  AEEEIERE @ AR B NRERE (PULA
website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and  www.hansenergy.com) * SR B5 G B AN A 7] 75
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations, R K& « BIKEER DEERFHLEM
financial information, corporate governance practices and other BRI ZFHEERNEH -

information are posted.
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The directors submit herewith their annual report and the audited

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 201 |.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note |3 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 201 | are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 36.

Taking into account of tremendous ongoing capital commitment of
the Group for those under going construction works, the directors do
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: Nil). However, the Board of Directors will
determine dividend distribution policies once the Group has secured
stable income from the operations of the new terminal DZIT and Solid

Warehousing Centre in coming years.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details in movement in share capital of the Company are set out in note
22 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from reserves
of the Company and of the Group during the year are set out on the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and in note 23 to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 December 201 I, the Company's reserve available for distribution
amounted to HK$ 181 million (2010: HK$671 million).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements of fixed assets during the year are set out in note
I'l to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors
David An (Chairman)
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
Liu Zhijun

Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive directors
Li Wai Keung

Liu Jian

Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Mr. David An, Mr. Zhang Lei and Mr. Liu Jian shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting pursuant to Article | 16.

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is
the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s Articles of
Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of directors
of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which have been notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix |0 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares

EERKRG - HERO R EERF
ZREBERAR

RIE—F+_A=+—H ARaEEK
BEZHMBEARRRARRERBEIE(TER
BH RIS GG ([FH RIS EG )) EXVER)
2B - MR G R EREET - A DIREE
HE RS EHIEXVEETRFs S BME AR
RIRBEBHART AR AR (BT 2
BRRE  UERARBESRBEENE
UEHREFBEZERMAZES AR » 5
AR R FTRE A AR B ([ _ETAR Al ) B8k
0T E BT AEREITHEFR B IZLEST
BI([HZ#<P B ) IR ANE AR B B 2 4
SHEABMWT

ARFISREEO. 08T 2 BB
Approximate percentage

to the issued share capital
of the Company

RDEE IEERARERTRA OB
Nature of Long Short Long Short
Name of director interest Positions positions Positions positions
EEHSR BEME wE HE HR KB
Mr. David An * Corporate A &] 2,548,203,980 Nil f% 68.27% Nil 4
EER ey (Note fat 1)
Personal {iE A 218,390,000 Nil £ 5.85% Nil 4
Note: MisE -

The shares are held directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise
Investments Ltd (“Extreme Wise"”) and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-
Chemicals, both of which are wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By virtue of
SFO, Mr. David An is deemed to have corporate interest in the 2,548,203,980

shares.

* Mr. David An, being a director of the Company, is also acting as the Chief
Executive of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 201 |, none of the directors
of the Company and their associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations which had to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme detailed in note 21 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other
body corporate and none of the directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisting at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance.
The Company's corporate governance practices are based on the
Principles and the Code Provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules. The
Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
that these continue to meet the requirements of the Code Provisions.
Throughout the year 201 |, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 15
to 24.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, shareholders (other than directors of the
Company) who had interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares

FTERRRAQAFARAD 2EHER
KB

RZB——F+-_A=+—08 BE(TB#E
RAFZER)RARARYD RBERDH -
BERBEZFFRBEEGEXVIELREID
2 BRAARREE RS AR - sE R
AR RIRIBE S R EE G0 5E 3361648 EF
BrELMAZESRARIT

A BIEAEIEO. | 0B TTZ Bk
Approximate percentage

to the issued share capital
of the Company

Rt B EARFEERITRAZBNE DL

Long Short Long Short

Name of shareholder Positions positions Positions positions

ESpnR "R HE HR KA

Mr. David An EifZ5C4 (Note ffaE 1) 2,766,593,980 Nil 4% 74.12% Nil #%

Vand Petro-Chemicals (Note f7z# 1) 2,338,430,000 Nil 4% 62.65% Nil 4%

Dubai World Corporation (Note #7# 2) 370,000,000 Nil 4 991% Nil 4

Extreme Wise (Note ff7t 1) 209,773,980 Nil 4% 5.62% Nil
Notes: MsE -

I. The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr. David An
personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and 2,338,430,000
shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals, both companies being wholly-owned
by Mr. David An. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. David An is deemed to be
interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr. David An is a director of Extreme
Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the Company.

2. The shares are held directly by Pony HK World, indirectly wholly-owned by
Dubai World Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 201 |, the Company has not
been notified by any persons (other than directors or the chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

2 E D R B 218,390,000 % B & 2 e 4 E
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BB 0 23384300008 B B Vand Petro-
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Chemicals M A AR Z ESE o

2. ZERMDMAEPony HK WorldEE#HE » MZA
A]J9EDubai World Corporationfd# 2 & A ©

BREXHIEEEN BE-_T——F+_A
=t—HLt - BEEFAAL(TEEAARE
ERTBAH)MEARRRERARRABM K
HERD S - BEREES KREGRMEXY
FREE2REINE - RRARRWER 2 IR
B RREBEEZRARGROIE36MF - fRiRn
ZIRPINREARRBAFE 2 B Rz s
PRE o

) =N

28-29




Directors’ Report
EEWRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on |6 December 2002,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “‘scheme”) for the
purpose of enabling the Company to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract resources that are available to the Group and to
provide the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such persons
who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group. The scheme remains
in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of such scheme and
expires on |5 December 2012.

Under the scheme, the board of directors of the Company (the
“directors”) may at their discretion grant options to (i) any director of
the Company or any company in which the Company holds an equity
interest; or (ii) any employee of the Company or any company in
which the Company owns any equity interest; (i) any consultant, agent,
business affiliate, professional and other advisor, business partner, joint
venture partner, strategic partner, or any supplier or provider of goods or
services to the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company as may be
determined by the directors from time to time to subscribe for the shares
of the Company (the “shares”).

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of grant,
upon payment of HK$ | per option. The maximum number of shares in
respect to which options may be granted under the scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of
adopting the scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any time provided
that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the shareholders’ approval
in general meeting. However, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the scheme and any other scheme of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any |2-month period shall not exceed
|9% of the shares in issue on the last date of such |2-month period
unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess of issued
share capital of the Company or with a value in excess of HK$5 million

must be approved in advance by the shareholders of the Company.
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Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the share
option to the |0th anniversary of the date of grant as may be determined
by the directors. The exercise price is determined by the directors, and
will not be less than the higher of the closing price per share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant of
the options and the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of the grant of the options.

On 7 May 2008, the Board approved to grant options in respect of
72,400,000 ordinary shares to the Company’s directors and senior
management under the scheme. Details of the share options granted are
set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

Information in relation to share options disclosed in accordance with the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange was as follows:

BERETERDEAREREAZ TAFRIE
ZHEANTTE - MARMERETE - TEER
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EEXABRNERIMERRER L2 FHIKR
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R-ZBZNER AR EESIERIEL
EMARRIEERSRERASERHIR
72,400,0000% & i@ A% 2 B IR o BN R
R LR FIERR I IEIREM 2 -

R P E TR RIPT IR EE A BB A O B R
LU

Period Number of Number of
during which Exercise share options Lapsed share options
share options price  outstanding during  outstanding
Eligible person Date of grant  are exercisable per share at 11172011 theyear at31/12/2011
R=2--% R=2--%F
—A-H t=A=t-H
KA MALTE
RERAL RitiAH BRETES  SROER BREZEE ERXN  BREZHE
DIMIYYYY DIMINYYY HK$
R/R/% R/R/% BT

Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas 5§85t £ 7152008 7/5/2008-7/5/201 | 050 8,500,000 8,500,000 -
Ms. Liu Zhijun EELL 7152008 7/5/2008-7/5/201 | 050 8,500,000 8,500,000 -
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 7152008 7/5/2008-7/5/201 | 050 8,500,000 8,500,000 -

Independent non- Bk
executive directors HITES

Mr. Li Wai Keung FREKE 71512008 7/5/2008-7/5/201 | 050 200,000 200,000 -
Mr. Liu Jian Bt 71512008 7/5/2008-7/5/201 | 050 200,000 200,000 -
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony  RIREER 4 71512008 7/5/2008-7/5/201 | 050 200,000 200,000 -
26,100,000 26,100,000 -
Employees &8 71512008 7/5/2008-7/5/201 | 050 46,300,000 46,300,000 -
72,400,000 72,400,000 -

) =N
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Directors’ Report
EEWRE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers comprised approximately 56% of the Group's total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group'’s largest customer were
approximately 34% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers comprised approximately
47% of the Group's total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier were approximately 25% of the Group's total
purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder which, to the knowledge of the directors, owned more than
5% of the Company's issued share capital had any interest in the share
capital of any of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of movements in the Group's bank loans during the year are set
out in note |7 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association although there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 201 I, the Group had a workforce of 414 (2010: 400)
employees, 400 (2010: 390) of which worked for the terminals. Every
year, the Group devises a budget which states total salary and bonus plan
for the year to encourage the Group’s employees to contribute their
best efforts and to make maximum economic benefits to the Group. In
accordance with the relevant government regulations in the PRC, the
Group is required to cover social insurance, including but not limited
to retirement, medical, workman compensation and unemployment
insurance as well as housing fund for every qualified employee in the
PRC. With these insurance policies and staff benefits, the Group hopes to
provide a reasonable welfare for each qualified employee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY?’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

For the year ended 3| December 201 I, based on the information that
is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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LITIGATION

As at 3| December 201 |, there were no material contingent liabilities
in respect of outstanding litigation or legal proceedings that need to be
disclosed.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
David An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HANS ENERGY
COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans Energy
Company Limited (“the Company") and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 36 to 103, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 201 |, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 201 | and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note |(b) to the
consolidated financial statements which indicates that the Group incurred
consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$133,930,000 during the year ended 3| December 201 | and had
consolidated net current liabilities of HK$ |, 119,005,000 at 3| December
201 1. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on the
Group's ability to provide the necessary additional security for its banking
facilities of HK$1,171,825,000 as described in notes |(b), 14 and |7 to
the consolidated financial statements.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
|0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEEER

for the year ended 3| December 201 | BZE T ——F+_A=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAMTTHIR)

2011 2010
—B2——F —EFF
Note $°000 $'000
liEss Fx Tt
Turnover ] 3 144,884 159,615
Direct costs and operating expenses BERAREXER (106,130) (55,052)
38,754 104,563
Other net income H bl e F 58 4 213 2222
Administrative expenses THER (47,517) (42,561)
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 REWGTE 2 R B8 14(a) (109,472) =
(Loss)/profit from operations Kz (F5E),BR (118,022) 64,224
Finance costs TR A 5(@) (25,231) (679)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBiAT (E1E) ER 5 (143,253) 63,545
Income tax PRAS Mt 6(a) 182 (20,738)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),BF (143,071) 42,807
Attributable to: FEh
Equity shareholders of the Company PN/ S 9 (133,930) 37,020
Non-controlling interests IR (9,141) 5,787
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(EE),uF (143,071) 42,807
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(EE), BT 10
— basic —FR (3.59 cents 1) 0.99 cent Il
— diluted —E (3.59 cents i) 0.99 cent Il
The notes on pages 43 to 103 form part of these financial statements. BN FE43 8 E 103 B 2 M 5E A AR I 5 B 75 ¥
RZ—HBD -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EWER

for the year ended 3| December 201 | H#E T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZSTTHIR)

2011 2010
—E——F —ETFF
Note $’000 $'000
M e Frx Tt
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(EE) ER (143,071) 42,807
Other comprehensive income FRHMEE KR
for the year
Exchange differences on translation of BMEH B AR BEHRER 2
financial statements of subsidiaries b 5 =%8 31,497 21,988
Total comprehensive income FREEWZEE
for the year (11,574) 64,795
Attributable to: PE1E -
Equity shareholders of the Company ZiN/NGT &S (104,906) 57,245
Non-controlling interests Eealiig e (6,668) 7,550
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWNFETE
for the year (111,574) 64,795
The notes on pages 43 to 103 form part of these financial statements. MREB43EZE |03 H 2 MaE AL F B 5k
Z— &b e
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEEAGER
v 9 =3 = =~ E

at 31 December 201 | R=ZF——F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAMTTHIR)

2011 2010
—ET——F —T—TF
Note $°000 $'000
BiaE T T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE I
— Property, plant and equipment — M - R MR 1,571,956 284,378
— Construction in progress —fEETR I'l(a) - 1,418,758
— Interests in land held for own use under —RIEK LT ERHIEE
operating leases 2 TR I'1(b) 280,137 19,060
Prepayments for construction costs BEERR 2 TN FIE 15,263 21,176
Intangible assets B EE 12 2,809 2,993
1,870,165 1,746,365
Current assets REBEE
Interests in land held for own use under BEGEHEFEERZ
operating leases TR ['1(b) 7,587 1,554
Consumable parts JEFEm 18,327 3,462
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H M pEWRIE |4 31,515 72,104
Current tax recoverable NHAFE R IE 18(a) 13,786 —
Cash and cash equivalents HehHEESEEIER |5 68,281 76,429
139,496 153,549
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hi MR IBNREHRE R 16 76,004 99,989
Deferred revenue IRIEW 2,872 3,634
Bank loans IRITE |7 1,179,625 10,200
Current taxation ANHAFS 18 18(a) - 5,694
1,258,501 119517
Net current (liabilities)/assets FRE(AE) EE (1,119,005) 34,032
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERS 751,160 1,780,397

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011

ERREBRERAR =T ——FFR



2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Note $°000 $'000
B = Fr Tt
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIB A S 18(b) 7,236 7,420
Bank loans RITERR 17 - 116469
Amount due to a director B —REEIB 19 198,990 -
206,226 1,123,889
NET ASSETS EERE 544,934 656,508
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital & 22 373,264 373,264
Reserves HE 124,221 229,127
Total equity attributable to equity ZRPA B R R ARG AR
shareholders of the Company 497,485 602,391
Non-controlling interests IR S 47,449 54,117
TOTAL EQUITY e 544,934 656,508

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March

2012,

The notes on pages 43 to |03 form part of these financial statements.

David An
HiE

Chairman

FE

REZE——F=A-t++HEEESHERK
fi3

RETIES o

Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas

Executive Director

BITEF

REBAIEE 03B Z R AR UL FR 8RR

Z—8b e
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Balance Sheet

BEBER

at 31 December 201 | R=ZF——F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAMTTHIR)

2011 2010
—ET——F —T—TF
Note $°000 $'000
BiaE F T

Non-current asset FEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AT ZIRE 13 575,246 1,052,848

Current assets REBEE
Other receivables Ho A e SR IE 14 356 356
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEFEHEAB 15 9,997 1816
10,353 2,172
Current liability ik I=Ri

Other payables and accruals HEA I RIERFHRE A 1,069 1,069
Net current assets REEEFE 9,284 1,103
Total assets less current liability HEERABAS 584,530 1,053,951

Non-current liability FEREAE
Amount due to a director B —RESFFIE 19 30,000 -
NET ASSETS BEEFE 554,530 1,053,951

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARE#HE
Share capital A& 2N 22 373,264 373,264
Reserves e 23(a) 181,266 680,687
TOTAL EQUITY s 554,530 1,053,951

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March

2012.

David An
HE

Chairman

FE

The notes on pages 43 to 103 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
eEREER

for the year ended 3| December 201 | H#E T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZSTTHIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARRERRR
Share-based Non-

Share Share Special ~ Translation  Statutory compensation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
kA& RivEE KHIRE ENGRE EERE  ROFMRERE ZithR &% FERER L
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i T T T i i v T T T

Balance at | January 2010 R=%-35-5-8
28 373264 710477 (151428) 55615 31,947 9811 (385,148) 544538 46567 591,105

Changes in equity for 2010:  —F-FFEHSE:
Proft for the year il - - - - - - 37020 37020 5787 42807
Other comprehensive incore ApzEks - - - 20205 - - - 20205 1763 21988
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - - - 20225 - - 37020 57,45 7550 64795
Equity settled share-based transactions MBS EE 2 RAR5 - - - - - 608 - 608 - 608

Balance at 3| December 2010 R=F-5F
and | January 2011 T2A=+-RR

§--£-A-A
Lt 373,264 710477 (251,428) 75,840 31,947 10419 (348,128) 602,391 54,117 656,508

Changesin equity for2011:  =F--F#&%5:
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (133,930)  (133,930) 9,141)  (143,071)
Other comprehensive income Hp2EkE - - - 29,024 - - - 29,024 24713 31,497
Total comprehensive income 2ENGES - - - 29,04 - - (133,930)  (104,906) (6,668) (111,574
Equity settled shere-based transactions M iER&E ZRIHZH - - - - - (10,419) 10419 - - -

Balance at 3| December 2011 R=F--F

+ZR=t-AZ&R 373,264 110477 (251,428) 104,864 31,947 - (471,639) 497,485 41449 544,934

The notes on pages 43 to 103 form part of these financial statements.

o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MERETMRER

for the year ended 3| December 201 | BZE T ——F+_A=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAMTTHIR)

2011 2010
—B2——F —EFF
Note $°000 $'000
liEss Fx Tt
Operating activities BT
Cash used in operations B TEFTRIR & [5(b) (20,272) (2,492)
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) B EARKLTE
Enterprises Income Tax paid (T E ) FEEH (19,674) (20,748)
Net cash used in operating activities && %K ARLTE (39,946) (23,240)
Investing activities BEES
Capital expenditure BAEY (102,647) (389,865)
Interest received 2 F 2 1,180 1,419
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE - BEREHEZ
plant and equipment TS 70A 66 |57
Net cash used in investing activities R&EEFESHFTABRSEE (1o1,401) (388,289)
Financing activities MEEE
Interest paid EAALE (66,059) (55,108)
Advance from a director EEA IE 198,990 =
Proceeds from new bank loans IRITE RIS RIE - 1229976
Repayment of bank loans BRIETTER (2,400) (1,036,151)
Net cash generated from financing @& EZEHFTEREFHE
activities 130,531 138,717
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRkBELEEEARD
equivalents B (10,816) (272,812)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BHZBEER
at | January RE&%EERA 76,429 342,421
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEERESH 2
changes 2,668 6,820
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—A=t+t—HBZHER
at 3|1 December HEZEER I5(a) 68,281 76,429
The notes on pages 43 to 103 form part of these financial statements. HNEEZE 1038 2 WEAAEK I F IR
RZ—#D
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS RR FRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (MAATTIIR » SHEBAZBRSIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(2

(b)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note |(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3|
December 201 | comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

Going concern

During the year ended 3| December 201 [, a lessee of the
Group's oil storage tanks unilaterally terminated the lease
agreement and an impairment loss of $109,472,000 was
recognised on the accrued rental income receivable arising
from initial rent free period of the lease. Since the Group's
long-term bank loans were secured by the future operating
lease receivables of the lease agreement and it is uncertain
that the lease agreement will continue to be executed, the
outstanding long-term bank loans of $1,171,825,000 were
reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities at
31 December 201 |. Further details have been set out in notes
[4 and 17 to the financial statements.

BERERBE

(2

(b)

CEa L
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AD(T&AETEA]) kR2E - &
BRREFRAUNRLEERREDD
ZEBEHTE - WFHMBRRITEE
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ZERNETTBRBEHIIT -
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RETZ(EAMBHRELEA) - ©
AEBRARRZERMEHHEE
RS AR BT ERAR © BEEE 1 (o)
R E YRR AR SRR MEERT
ZEA(EBAREENA SRR
RISt EAREIARRE - BRI B
B]|KR) el M2 B EtBRE
BB -

MBHRR 2 WMUEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTSIR + BAEBAERIN)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |
(continued)
(b) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL

BEREHEEK #)

(b) BEEEZEREREE)

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011

STATEMENTS (continued)

Going concem (continued)

As a result of the above, the Group incurred consolidated
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$133,930,000 during the year ended 3| December 201 | and
had consolidated net current liabilities of $1, 119,005,000 at 31
December 201 1.

In order to maintain the long-term banking facilities of
$1,171,825,000 with the original repayment schedule
unchanged, the Group has been actively working with the
bank to fulfil its request by providing the necessary additional
security. The directors are confident that the Group can fulfil
the bank's request and the long-term banking facilities can be

maintained.

The directors have given careful consideration to the Group's
financial performance and liquidity position. On the basis that
the Group can satisfactorily fulfil the bank's request and having
considered the Group's current operation and business plan,
the directors are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis. Should the
Group not be able to continue to operate as a going concem,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the value
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not
been reflected in these financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(b) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL

(©

STATEMENTS (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the Group'’s
financial statements:

—  HKAS 24 (Revised 2009), Related party disclosures

—  Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

—  HK(FRIC) 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity

instruments

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(note 30).

HK(FRIC) 9 has not yet had a material impact on the
Group's financial statements as these changes will first be
effective as and when the Group enters a relevant transaction

(for example, a debt for equity swap).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTSIR + BAEBAERIN)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |

(continued)

(c) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The impacts of other developments are discussed below:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed the
identification of related parties and concluded that the
revised definition does not have any material impact on
the Group's related party disclosures in the current and

previous period.

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces modified
disclosure requirements for government-related entities.
This does not impact the Group because the Group is

not a government-related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures. The disclosures about the Group's financial
instruments in note 24 have been conformed to the
amended disclosure requirement. These amendments
do not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements in the current and

previous periods.

(d) SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control

exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial

and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits

from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights

that presently are exercisable are taken into account.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |
(continued)
(d) SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

BEREFTEHE#)

(d) MIEATIRIFZERERZ)

INTERESTS (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there

is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary's net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet in accordance with notes | (l) or (p)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTSIR + BAEBAERIN)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

C))

O
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SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company's balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note | (h)).

FIXED ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

| (h)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production

overheads and borrowing costs (see note | (t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the

date of retirement or disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

O

®

()

FIXED ASSETS

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

—  Buildings 5-30 years
—  Dock and storage facilities 5-30 years
—  Office equipment 5-10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5-10 years

—  Leasehold improvements Over the term of

the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note |(h)).
Amortisation of club memberships is charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of |7 to
20 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.

LEASED ASSETS

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) LEASED ASSETS (continued)

(0

(i)
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Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, except that land held for
own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or

taken over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease term.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the

Group about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

—  asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  Forinvestments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss
is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note | (h)(ii). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note | (h)(ii).
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES | EAEHBE®)

(continued)
(h) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (h) EERE
() Impairment of investments in equity securities and () RS RE RIEW A RE
receivables (continued) (%)
—  For trade and other current receivables and —  BLUABESEA AT EBRM B2
other financial assets carried at amortised cost, 2 A0 Ath 7 2 JE MK -
the impairment loss is measured as the difference AREMES®EEM
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between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

()

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

= fixed assets;
—  intangible assets; and
= non-current prepayments.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

—  Cadleulation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

0]

()
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IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

CONSUMABLE PARTS

Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance purposes
by the Group are stated at cost less any provision for
obsolescence.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note |(h)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(k) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

U]

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

(m) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date after
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(m) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(n)

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011

(i)~ Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the share-based compensation reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

INCOME TAX (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination) and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

(0)

(P)
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INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on undistributed profits of investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue represents unearned rental income received
in advance, which is recognised as revenue in profit or loss in
equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term
(see note [(r)(i)).

OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables (including amount due to a director) are
initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(q) PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

()

(s)

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

receivable.

(i) Portincome is recognised in profit or loss upon
performance of the services.

(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries
in the PRC are Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi Yuan
respectively. The Group adopted Hong Kong dollars as its

presentation currency.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s)

(t)
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TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of operations with functional currency other than
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing exchange rates at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to

prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(u) RELATED PARTIES
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTSIR + BAEBAERIN)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |

(continued)

(v) SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods, used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

(w) DIVIDENDS
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which

they are declared.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 2
ESTIMATES
Note 21 and 24 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of share options granted
and financial instruments. Other critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group'’s accounting policies and key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) IMPAIRMENTS
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment is
identified, management prepares discounted future cash flow
to assess the differences between the carrying amount and
value in use and provides for impairment loss. Any change
in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease in the provision of impairment loss and

affect the Group's net asset value.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

IMPAIRMENTS (continued)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts is assessed and
provided based on the management's regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would

affect the net profit in future years.

DEPRECIATION

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

LEASE CLASSIFICATION

Leases are classified as operating leases if the duration
of the arrangement are for less than a major part of the
facilities’ useful lives and the present value of the minimum
payments under the arrangement does not amount to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the facilities. The conclusion
on classification of leases may be affected if there are
significant changes in assumptions adopted in the estimates of
the facilities’ useful lives and the present value of the minimum
payments. The Group uses all readily available information
in estimating the useful lives and present value of minimum
payments.

PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Judgment is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The final outcomes are subject to

uncertainties and resulting liabilities may exceed provisions.

2 SItHERMEE e

®

(i)

(i)

(iv)

AR ()
BEERETERETZREOITR
A B AT B 1 R A A R AR R (E
BETRHE REL R - EERNET
BEBREFPZEEERBENRK
FLERBF T TIEAR B AR 2 T

EREBRENIA SRS
1k T 2 MFFE -

e

Bl B ENBREIREENGEH
ERFHITE - ARESEHRE
BEHREENGAIEREE
NEEE R RS BRI ERSE
B RRNTERXSRREER
FTEFHERBCmE -

HEDE

T A& > 8PS 2 BRI M R 5
ZREDAMERFH - MREL P
S 2 ARSI 2 REW FHERIE
ZBRBARAE AEEENER
RICEME - MEFTREATERF
Hi R AR SR 2 BER PR A 2 R
REREAES  HEZHHRHE
REPE - AKERGEAERF
iR SRR BER - SEMAT
BRREEF -

BIARE

EEFSTHARERT 2IFH HIE -
REEXEBBETEHREZEH
BEEYTHEZRXHNAE - &
RERZBNTEERRZE - W
EEXZBEAEINBEEZER -

62-63



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERR M RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTHIR + BAEBAERIN)

3

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011

(@)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EXERIBRE
TURNOVER (a) EXEH
The principal activities of the Group are provision of terminal, AREEZ TEERKASIRMEGE &
transshipment and storage facilities services for oil and 8 [} Al A A b EE fn BT 17 5% e R
petrochemical products. i
Turnover represents port income and storage and BRI O A K BT 17 A gy Uk
transshipment income. The amount of each significant category A FRAREHEBARRZSEKN
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows: BRI
2011 2010
—B——fF —E-TF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Port income BOA 5,282 6,804
Storage and transshipment income A7 Rz s U A 139,602 52,81 |
144,884 159,615
In 2011, the Group has two customers (2010: two) with RZZ——%F  KXEEAMA(Z
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s T—TF : MB)BFEAEEHE
revenues. In 201 |, revenue from provision of storage TR GHEBAREBRAZ10% -
and transshipment services to these customers, including RIZE——F - MZMEBEPREMHR
revenues from entities which are known to the Group to P REHREAE WA - BIE
be under common control with this customer, amounted to REEEMZZAT P HRES 2
approximately $49 million (2010: $92 million) and $17 million FRAEZWAS R AKI49008 T
(2010: $19 million) respectively. Details of concentrations of (ZZ—ZF : 92008 7T) & 1,7008
credit risk arising from the Group’s major customers are set TT(ZE—F%F : |,90087T) - AR
out in note 24(a). SEFrERFEAEERRERZ
G - ERMTEE24() ©
Further details regarding the Group's principal activities are AAREEFEEB 2 FIEREN
disclosed below: T ¢
SEGMENT REPORTING (b) DEHE

(b)

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are
organised by geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group's
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has identified the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

—  Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT"): this segment
represents the Group's provision of terminal,
transshipment and storage activities carried out in Panyu,
the PRC.

ERREBRERAR =T ——FFR

AEBEBILWES D BREE
HER - REBEAARERSET
BEREAESARERERADEE
BMFHERBR B2 TR - A%E
BRI EIA T B R RS 2 78 o A%
B30 A GHE(IE S 0 B0 - AKX
THN 2 AT EDED

- PESHEAR(/IEALE]D :
D B RA S BT B ESR
R RIREASER - B N
ZE o



3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

()

Dongzhou International Terminal (“DZIT"): this
segment represents the Group's provision of terminal,
transshipment and storage activities carried out in
Dongguan, the PRC. Construction of DZIT was
completed during 201 | and it commenced its business
operations in October 201 |.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
senior executive management monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in subsidiaries and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include other payables and accruals, deferred
revenue and current taxable payable attributable to
the individual segments, and bank borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “‘profit
before taxation”, i.e. “adjusted eamings before taxes”. To
arrive at “profit before taxation”, the Group's earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs.

3

EEEN DI/ E )

(b) 7B

s (40)

RNEBBE(RME
B A HAREERE
REEH RIRETEE - BHR
5772 %75 - INEILERE
TER=B——FR%R
ER=F——5+ARMHE
THHIE -

DERE  BERBE

RAED R L DB D EE
RmE ZK%.EYIEETTB{E
A B T EEERE AW
EDEEIN 2 kE - BEKRA

1A' :

DEEE a%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?
BEERRBEE - BT

KB A ﬂz&iéf&ﬁﬁﬂ
AEE - HEPREBREME
NFBERFHRER - BT
K855 BRRE(L 2 AN HATIR -
AR EDEEREER ZRITIE
WARS R 2 RAIHEDF
PEES 2 SHE R M % F 0 2R PT
EEZXHEZEDEEEE
EEL T ES S HTRM

DEEAREDE °

D
s

ok

fﬁ?&

[EHDEafFRAZ AR
[BRBLADEA | - B[ REHHLIE
A Z (S RF | - BER K
FANEA | - NEEZ B F5
Iﬂ%iﬁﬁgflﬁy\*ﬁzﬁﬁ
(ZZD#% RN EIFTERA AR ) fEH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAFETLHIR + BAEAEKRIN)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 ®XIERSHREL)
(continued)
(b) SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) (b) PEHHEE)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () REEE BEREEGE)
In addition to receiving segment information concemning BRIEGEBREANEN 2 D5
profit before taxation, management is provided with BRI EIREIEREEHE
segment information concerning revenue, interest WA~ FIEMA - BARSRAS
income, finance costs, impairment loss on trade B 5 e WRIA 2 A R 1E ST
receivables and additions to non-current segment assets. HIERE D EBEEZ D EPE

¥ o
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
provided to the Group's most senior executive BHE_ZT——FR-_ZT—ZTF
management for the purposes of resource allocation and TZA=T—HIEFERBIRE
assessment of segment performance for the years ended HIXEEZSEITHEEA
31 December 201 | and 2010 is set out below. B B IR R D EBRER
ZERHFIR T
XHIT DZIT Total
PRAELE FMAELE @t
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Z2--f | Z2-%F | ZB--F | Z2-%F | Z8--F | _T-TF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000 $'000 $000
i i i Tr i T
Reportable segment revenue  ATREAHMA 123,473 159,615 21,411 = 144,884 159,615
Reportable segment (loss)/profit T3R5 SRBA Al
before taxation (B8) /57 (84,608) | 94457 | (28,134) Sy s
Interest income MBBA 1,074 1,405 37 - LI 1 405
Finance costs BB 10811 492 14,262 - 25,073 492
Impairment loss on trade BARYTIEL
receivables REER 109,472 = - = 109,472 =
XHIT DZIT Total
PRAELE FNBLE At
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“%--% |2 %F | 2%-F |25 TF | Z%--F | 2T %%
$°000 $000 $000 $000 $°000 $000
T i r i i i
Reportable segment assets BEEGE 1,494,080 | 1401906 | 1,450,708 | 1280584 | 2,944,788 | 2682490
Reportable segment liabilies ~ AIREAHAE 1,366,024 [,155101 | 1,015,060 872519 | 2,381,084 | 2027620
Additions to non-current FRFIEIERE
segment assets during the year ~ HEEE 11,627 124733 99,653 294,388 111,280 419,121
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3

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(continued)

(b) SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(i)

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or

EEEN D IWE )

2RI E (F)

A&7 EMA ~ Bz - BE

(i)

loss, assets and liabilities REEZ 8
2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-TF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue Al R o E2ULA 144,884 159,615
Consolidated turnover (note 3(a)) fre (3 E) 144,884 159,615
(Loss)/Profit (B518), &R
Reportable segment (loss)/profit before A ¥4 5 ZRER FL Al
taxation (B18),/ 57 (112,742) 94,457
Unallocated other net (loss)/income R BLEALFE (B518),Was 8) 450
Unallocated head office and corporate R BC4830 KA &)z i
expenses (30,503) (31,362)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before IREBRT A (EEB), SR
taxation (143,253) 63,545
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AlERE D EPE E 2,944,788 2,682,490
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 4§55 35fE 2 & W FIE (964,519) (803,443)
1,980,269 1,879,047
Unallocated head office and ROBLABEL
corporate assets RNEIEE 29,392 20,867
Consolidated total assets SRS B E 2,009,661 1,899,914
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTHIR + BAEBAERIN)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

EEBR D IHRE 2)

(b) FBH/EE)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or (i)  AIREZEWA - Ba - BE
loss, assets and liabilities (continued) REEZH R (&)
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—EF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities AERENLEE 2,381,084 2,027,620
Elimination of inter-segment payables 54> BB & 2 FE {708 (964,519) (803,443)
1,416,565 1,224,177
Unallocated head office and ROBLAER R A
corporate liabilities 48,162 19,229
Consolidated total liabilities meRaE 1,464,727 1,243,406
(i) Geographic information (i) AR B

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group's fixed assets,
intangible assets, non-current prepayments (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided. The geographical location of the specified

non-current assets is based on the physical location of

TRES| B AR E ()RS
ERINBEEEFZHAR
(IVAEECzEEEE B
BE - EnFBEMNFE(EE
ERBEE]) TR E
B o BB AT R AR AR TS
2B AR o FBEIERENE
EFTfE R A B E 2 B AT

the asset. b B A KR o
Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
MBEEFEZBA EEERBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g2--%| -T-FF| =-%--F| -Z2-%%
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Tr Tt Tr T
Hong Kong BB - - 3,166 3610
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) ~ HEI(FRIEEE) 144,884 159,615 1,866,999 742,755
144,884 159,615 1,870,165 [,746,365
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4 OTHER NET INCOME H o 25 8
2011 2010
—E——F —ETFF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Interest income HBUA 1,180 1,419
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEMEREN
plant and equipment (E518), W (109) 32
Net foreign exchange loss B SR 5 R (1,395) (436)
Others Hib 537 [,207
213 2,222
5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBIAT(ER),RF
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BB AT (E518) % A TH 4N BR T 51 & 18
1RIZER
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
(a) Finance costs (@) MBHEE
Interest on bank loans RITEFF B 66,198 55,108
Less: Borrowing costs capitalised as W BRAMEBERIREZ
construction in progress BB A (40,967) (54,429)
25,231 679
The borrowing costs during 201 | have been capitalised at a rate of RZTE——FR  BERABRFERNE
5.40% — 6.39% per annum (2010: 4.86% — 5.58% per annum) for 540%—639%( T —F4F : 486%-5.58%)

BENERERETIE -

construction in progress.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTSIR + BAEBAERIN)

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (conined) 5 BRELRI(EE),785F (&)

2011 2010
—B2——F —EFF
$°000 $'000
Frx Tt
(b) Staff costs* (b) BImA&"
Contributions to defined contribution ) BB FGR IR EIVE R
retirement plans 2R 1,526 [,179
Salaries, wages and other benefits HE - TE REMIEF] 41,110 32,578
Equity settled share-based payments AR A E 2 IR > - 608
42,636 34,365
(c) Other items (c) HAEE
Depreciation and amortisation e R N 62,159 29411
Auditor's remuneration ZERD &
— audit services — % RTS 1,250 [,180
— review services — BRI RE 380 380
Operating lease charges on properties* MERNKETEEB R 5,664 5,645
Charitable donations BERR 24 613
% Staff costs includes $1,800,000 (2010: $1,850,000) relating to & BEIRABEMENKERE
operating lease charges on properties, which amount is also A 1,8000007T (=& — T .
included in the respective total amount disclosed separately 1,850,0007T) * B INET AR £
above. MERIBEER R B Az o
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6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT REPRESENTS:

(@)

6 HRBEBRRPZFAEH

()

mEBmKRPZAEHE

2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Current tax — PRC Enterprise  ZNHIF{1E — B ZE 55
Income Tax
Provision for the year REEEAE - 211552
Under-provision in respect of prior £ S8 7 B4
years 358 -
358 21,552
Deferred tax IEEDE
Origination and reversal of temporary R 2= B 7 B A4 K [0 %
differences (note |18(b)) (KizEI8(b)) (540) (814)
(182) 20738

Notes:

0]

(if)

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year ended 3|
December 201 | as the Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong
Profits Tax purposes for the year (2010: Nil).

No PRC Enterprise Income Tax was provided for the year
ended 3| December 201 | as the Group sustained a loss for
PRC Enterprise Income Tax purposes for the year.

Pursuant to the approval from the PRC authority issued in
2002 regarding port operating business, one of the subsidiaries
in the PRC, Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage &
Transportation Ltd. (“GD (Panyu)’) was granted certain tax
relief whereby the profit for the five years starting from its first
profit-making year is exempted from income tax in the PRC and
the profit for each of the subsequent five years is taxed at 50%
of the prevailing tax rate set by the local tax authority. The PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate applicable to GD (Panyu) before |
January 2008 was |5%.

BiAE

0]

(i

BE—_T——Ft-A=1+—H
LFE - REBHNEHMS B
RARERFENELEE - Bt
WERE BN E B RAE (=T
= ).

BE-_T——Ft-A=1+—H
EFE R BEEXMERM
FOARNAEEREANELR
B - EIr A B RS H
AHER R -

RETEERERN_FT_F
RAEBOZEXEBH L 2HE B
F-REUNPEZHEARES
(BR)AMETRHERBARA
A(8E(ER) D ESETHA
BE BERENFEEFASE
MR E R R BPA SR - mMA
BRAFZHBREFORENRE
S0%1RIR S BEE MBITH K
B -R_ZENF-A—BZ
AERAREE(ER) 2R BB
PRSI E/S15%
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6 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT REPRESENTS: (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(2

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011

(i)

(continued)

On |6 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the PRC (“new CIT Law"”) which takes effect on
| January 2008. Under the new CIT Law and in accordance
with the implementation rules and notices issued by the
State Council and the State Administration of Taxation, an
entity established before |6 March 2007 that was entitled to
preferential tax treatment prior to the new CIT Law is subject
to a transitional tax rate beginning in 2008 (“‘Transitional Tax
Rate”) before the new corporate income tax rate of 25%
applies. For companies currently enjoying a reduced tax rate
of 15%, the Transitional Tax Rate is 8%, 20%, 22%, 24% and
25% in 2008, 2009, 2010, 20! | and 2012 onwards respectively.
Under the grandfathering treatments of the new CIT Law,
GD (Panyu), which has not fully utilised its five-year tax relief
upon the implementation of the new CIT Law, is allowed to
receive the tax relief during the five-year grandfathering period.
The applicable tax rate of GD (Panyu) for the year ended 3|
December 201 | was 24% (2010: 22%).

No tax relief has been granted to other subsidiaries in the PRC
and the applicable tax rates of these subsidiaries for the year
ended 3| December 201 | was 25% (2010: 25%).

In addition, under the new CIT Law, dividends paid by a
foreign-invested enterprise to its foreign investors are subject
to withholding tax at a rate of 10% unless reduced by treaty.
Under the grandfathering treatments, undistributed profits of
a foreign-invested enterprise as at 31 December 2007 are
exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 201 |, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group'’s foreign-invested enterprises
amounted to $157,669,000 (2010: $227,456,000). Deferred
tax liabilities of $7,883,000 (2010: $11,373,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of the foreign-invested enterprises
and the directors have determined that the profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

6

ERHERERAR T ——FF

GEBERPZIBHR @)

()

mERBERPZAEHE (&)

MieE : (&)

0)

(#)
“BELF=ATAA  ETE
2AARRRARERREHE

BB ERETA([FEEA
BEE]D YR=ZZFZTNF—A
—HREM - EHEEMSHE
T R AR BB B 75 B K B K B 75 48
RELZERMAIEBA LR
—EELF=RA+NHAKIZE
RETHEEMBRENZAM
BEBGFBENER BTN
FFRE R EEMBR K%
FERRMERBERE([BER
R |)RF - BE 5% R e ER
DR RZTEENF ZTTh
F-ZET-FTF - ZT—FR
T FROBERESRA
18% ~ 20% ~ 22% ~ 24%}:25% ° ¥E
T FEEBUEN 2 ZBEE R
REIT - B8 (FB)REHEH
FRITETEZEZIEAFHBEE
W R R RERR S 8 L
AR ERBER - BEZT——
F+ZA=+—RHLFEEE(FE
BIZERAME A% (T —F
F 0 20%) °

H b 75 R B T B A B3 AR R
MISER - MZEWNBAREE
—T——F+=-_A=+—HBLHF
EREAKRREL%( _E—F
£ :05%)

O EFEEAF/BET @ B
EEMBE AR DI INEDES
NEBIMREE Z IR SRR 10%
BHIB o E% X B E GKR
T MERER_TELF+—
A=1t—RZARDEMNBEHZ
TR -

RZZE——F+=-A=+—8"
AEBINECEZ RS EFEB
HEAZERMEREBEEZEAHRA
157,669,000 7L ( = & — T F :
227,4560007T) * AR RIARAB TR
DR EFER D A EmES 2T
15 T SR IR JE 7% 15 & 157,883,000 7T
(ZZF—Z4F : 11,37300078) * R
ERARAEHZINE D ZEZ K
BHEK  MEFSERETERN
Al RAE KD IRE A R Z FE o



6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)
(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX (CREDIT)/
EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING (LOSS)/PROFIT

mEBEXRPZABHR @)

(b) RERAREAEZBEESR),
XHEGE (FIR) 8RN ZHIR

AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: mE :
2011 2010
i —T-TF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
(Loss)/profit before taxation MR (E1R ), %A (143,253) 63,545
Notional tax on (loss)/profit REAR AR AT SR
before tax, calculated at 2R
the rates applicable in BREIAT(E1R), SR E 2
the tax jurisdiction concerned HZEMIB (32,503) 13,980
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses “NR[HEFX H 2 Fiisms 28 2,117 2,792
Tax effect of non-taxable income FIERBURA Z BT & (90) (755)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not  REERZ AHAHEEIE 2
recognised b 30,258 4762
Others Hth 36 (41
Actual tax (credit)/expense BEREHEGER) X (182) 20,738
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 EEHE
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the EEMEIRETEATHROIE 61 {EHHE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: I
2011 -
Salaries, Equity
allowances  Retirement settled
Directors’ and benefits scheme  share-based
fee inkind contributions payments Total
E210 =211 RIRGHE  LUEREE
Bz RENKE 5 ZROXH CE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Tr T T T
Executive directors HITES
David An B(E - 4,925 43 - 4,968
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas Jite] - 975 12 - 987
Liu Zhijun 2EE - 975 60 - 1,035
Zhang Lei RE - 1,209 12 - 1,221
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Li Wai Keung Fgg 120 - - - 120
Liu Jian e 120 - - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRik(E 120 - - - 120
360 8,084 127 - 8,571
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTSIR + BAEBAERIN)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7 ESMew
2010 —E-TF
Salaries, Equity
allowances Retirement settled
Directors’ and benefits scheme share-based
fee inkind  contributions payments Total
- 2B RINGHE]  DUEREE
EXe REVKE #Hy ZRO%H Gt
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T
Executive directors HTES
David An #E - 5056 30 - 5,086
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas Yot - | 475 12 71 558
Liu Zhijun 258 - | 475 60 71 1,606
Zhang Lei RE - 1,709 12 71 1,792

Independent non-executive B FHTES

directors
Li Wai Keung MR8 120 = = 2 122
Liu Jian 2 120 = = 2 122
Chan Chun Wai, Tony fRiRE 120 - - 2 [22
360 9,715 [14 219 10,408
During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company FRN - AARREENSKENESRHT
to the Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set X EE 8Pt T 2 fx e o A £ R R A
out in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining TEE - ARSI F N EAREESANA
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no RS SIERBEREE - £ BIE
arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any 513 e BEPABNE SRR B A B R E ]
remuneration during the year. < -
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
four (2010: four) are directors of the Company whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 7. The emoluments in respect of the remaining
individual is as follow:

8

REFMAL
RAEBAZREHFMALH - AR
B(ZF—FF : MB) ALTAFXATE
% EMERMETRE - BT —8AL
BSOS :

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

$°000 $'000

T Tt

Salaries and other benefits BN Be A AE 721 810

Equity settled share-based payments ARERRAEH 2 IR 2 - 50
Contributions to defined contribution TEREHFGRIRGT 8] 2 Kk

retirement plans 28 21

749 881

The emoluments of the remaining individual with the highest
emoluments is within the following band:

ZEREHFMALZMEN FIATEE :

Number of individuals
A

2011

=F——F

2010
—E—TF

Nil — $ 1,000,000 £ — | 000,0007T

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of $500,012,000 (2010: $3,979,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $133,930,000 (2010: profit of $37,020,000) and
the weighted average of 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares (2010:
3,732,638,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same as the basic (loss)/
earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2010 and
201| as the share options outstanding during the years are anti-
dilutive.

EARIRREM (BR), H A

AARIRREMLZERE (BER) 5
B 185000120007 (=T — T4 ¢
3,979,0007T) + HERARRMEHREA
f Bk o

SR(EE) &R

EREAR#BE(ER) BRI
BREAREE(EE) B THRE
FRAARRBZ EBEKEENERE
133,930,0007C ( = F —Z 4 : 37,020,000
T A ) & B B 1T IR AR b0 19
3,732,638000 1k EBR (=T —FTF :
3,732,638,0000% & BA% ) 5T & ©

R ERFT ARITEERE 2 2155
B (ER) B EEREEUNE
WEE—_ZT—ZEFR-_ZF—F+=A
=t+—HLFEzEREB(EHE) B
FEGREA(EIE),  BFHER -
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FIXED ASSETS I BEEE
THE GROUP EHE
Interests in
land held for
own use
Dock and Leasehold under
storage Office Motor  improve- Construction operating Total
Buildings  facilities equipment  vehicles ments  Sub-total in progress leases  fixed assets
RELERE
BER ELES KEEAZ  EREE
BT  BERE  BOERE RE 1] Mt EBIR 1BER L
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T r T T Tn T T T T
(note (@) (note (b))
(M) (W)
Cost: A
At | January 201 | RZF—%-A-A 15534 569,502 3984 17,036 149 606205 1418758 4380 2069345
Exchange adjustments 5 A% 1611 57209 193 814 - 59,847 36947 8282 105,076
Addtions e - 1707 mn 2893 - 5372 106,058 - 111430
Disposals ik - (902) (11 (730) - (1743) - - (1743)
Transfers 25 3645 1260557 100l - - 1298013 (1561.763) 263750 -
At 31 December 201 | W_E——F
+=-A=1+-H 53600 1888093 5839 20013 149 1967694 - 316414 2284108
Accumulated depreciation RsHTER & :
and amortisation:
At | January 201 | K=E—%-f-H 6925 303,104 2462 987 149 3187 - 23768 345595
Exchange adjustments B % 365 16271 98 447 - 17,81 - 1263 18444
Charge for the year FEEH 942 54701 566 2,089 - 58,298 - 3659 61,957
Wiitten back on disposals R ERER - (778) (98) (692) - (1,568) - - (1,568)
At 31 December 201 | W_E——F
+=A=1+-H 8232 373298 3028 11031 149 395,738 - 28690 44428
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 R-E——&
+=A=1+-H 45368 1514795 2811 8982 - 157195 - 8174 1859680

ERHEERAR —T——FF




FIXED ASSETS (continued)
THE GROUP (continued)

Dockand
storage Office Motor
Buildings faciliies  equipment vehicles

BT PERE  HOERE E

1l BEEE®)

rEE(E)
Interests in
land held for
own use
Leasehold under
improve- Construction operating Total
ments Sub-total  in progress leases  fixed assets
REMEHE
HEWE RfEEAZ  ERRE

ki

Nt ERIE  HitEs A

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
R T R R S R i T T
(note @))  (note (b))
(@) (W)
Cost: A
At | January 2010 R=F-5F-f-A 15012 514612 3966 12578 149 546317 976,598 4289 1,565,805
Exchange adjustments ERAE )] 18,826 106 475 - 19929 43375 1,492 64,796
Additions NE - 5338 945 479 - 11,079 432470 = 443549
[ He Y (R E S ) - )
Transfers & - 33685 - - - 33685 (33,685) - -
At 31 December 2010 e
+-A=t-H 15534 569,502 3984 17036 149 606,205 1,418,758 44382 2,069,345
Accumulated depreciation ZHTEREH
and amortisation:
At | January 2010 RZE-F5-f-H 6,18 270908 3,006 8,091 148 288271 - 21467 309,738
Exchange adjustments EH AR 07 9974 66 276 - 10543 - 784 11327
Charge for the year FEER 580 25,162 395 [,555 I 27693 - 1517 29210
Witenback ondiposts ~ REEREE Sy (0 () ) - S )
At 31 December 2010 RZE-%
T-A=1+-H 6925 303,104 2461 9,187 149 321827 - 23768 345595
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF
TZA=t-H 8,609 266398 1,522 7849 - 284378 1418758 20614 723750
(a) Construction in progress as at 31 December 2010 comprised (@ R=ZE—ZF+-_A=+—HZ#&E
costs incurred on the acquisition of land use rights and the EIRPEREMNACERNEAR
construction of port and storage facilities at DZIT and XHIT of b BE UK B b5 PR A I 2 588 1 K
$1,262 million and $157 million respectively. The constructions BP 17 aR e 2 AN 9 Bl 7 1 2.6218 7T &
were completed during 201 | and the corresponding costs |.57{87T - MIEITRER =T ——
were transferred to fixed assets accordingly. FHEMNERT BB AN E B dd
BEETEEE -
(b) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the PRC (b) AEEEABEBTHRER T 8

authorities with lease terms of 50 years. The net book value
as at 31 December 201 | includes an amount of $7,587,000
(2010: $1,554,000) which is disclosed as interest in land held

for own use under operating leases under current assets.

B HEHASF - R_T——
F+_A=+—HZEEFEAS
& 587587000 ( — T —FF ¢
1,554,0007C) * ER B EEER
TZREBECEHERIEGR 2 i
TR R o
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13

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BREE
The Group
REE
Club membership
=E 3
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
$°000 $'000
5 F
Cost: A :
At | January n—HA—H 3,788 3,771
Exchange adjustments IS 25 |7
At 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—8H 3,813 3,788
Accumulated amortisation: RoHEe
At | January R—H—H 795 591
Exchange adjustments B 5, S 7 3
Charge for the year FEEH 202 201
At 31 December N+=H=+—H 1,004 795
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December Rt+—HA=1+—8H 2,809 2,993

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative
expenses’” in the consolidated income statement.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AEE BB E AT AGAERERITTR

BRIP -

13 RBRRZKRE

The Company

PN
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
$’000 $'000
T T
Unlisted shares/capital contributions, at cost 3k FMAZ(D B AREE -
AR 1,051,500 1,051,500
Less: impairment loss B REEE (496,245) -
555,255 [,051,500
Amount due from a subsidiary FE—ZK B A mla I8 19,991 [,348
575,246 1,052,848

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and

not expected to be settled in the next year.

ERREBRERAR =T ——FFR

YU BARFEREERR 28 AR

BT ERRFEFE



13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which

13 RIBARZRE®)
NTHER BT ErEEmES &
EREBENESHE AT - BIE
BAESE - FAFTEY RGER AL E
A% o

principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise indicated.

ARARZF—F+-A=+-A2

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 3|1 December

201 | are as follows: FEMBRRZFEAT
Place of Particulars of Attributable
incorporation/ issued and equity interest
Place of establishment paid up capital bR Principal
Name of subsidiary operation SR B#TK  Directly Indirectly activities
WEARER BEw bk BERAFE B# B FEER
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Hong Kong Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100%  Provision of
Company Limited B BE of $1 each administrative
EERMLTARAR 200000008 services
BREEIT RAR AR
Oriental Point International Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares = 100%  Inactive
RREIRERAA] BB BE of $I each TEE
1,000,0008%
SRAEIT
Timeslink Development Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% —  Provision of
B ERERAH BE B of $1 each administrative
10,0008k services
BREEIT REB DR
Union Petro — Chemicals (BVI) Hong Kong British Virgin 100 shares 100% —  Investment holding
Company Limited &k Islands of US| each REER
ERBEDR(CTARAR ERRAES 1008
BREEIXT
GD (Panyu) PRC PRC RMB220,000,000 = 92%  Provision of terminal,
g5(E8) i G AR2200000007C storage and
transshipment
services
RETEE - TER
Bk
EMPEEREIEREBAR PRC PRC RMB4,820800 = 92%  Investment holding
("migal’) i i AR#48208007 BRERR
REMEMNERALERERA PRC PRC RMB374,110,000 = 92%  Provision of terminal,
Al ("EMERR") H H AR374,1100007T storage and

Note: GD (Panyu) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company and F%&
A1k and MBS are limited liability companies.

FRE -

transshipment

services
REBE - TER

BaRs

BB(BFR)E—KPIEERR - B

AEERMNERER—REREER

) o
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

14 B RAEMBWRRIE

The Group The Company
rEH PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
2| _T-TF | ZE——F | _T-ZTF
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Tt Tt Fx Tt
Trade receivables B 5l EIE 142,779 72,733 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful & : RIEEREE
debts (note 14(a)) (M 14()) (118,431) (6,131) - =
24,348 66,602 - -
Prepayments and other TR FRIE K EoAh
receivables W ZRIE 7,167 5,502 356 356
31,515 72,104 356 356

The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s prepayments
and other receivables expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense after more than one year is $1,000,000 (2010:
$814,000) and $Nil (2010: $Nil) respectively. Apart from these, the
prepayments and other receivables are expected to be recovered

or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

&

AEBEBRAQGIBHREBR —FERK
Bl sk R A B A 2 T8 5 518 K& A it FE
W I8 5 Bl A& 1,0000007C ( — T — =
8140007 ) REL(ZE—FF : T
TC) ° BRI Z AN -

AN SRR N EL A R R

EIRHHR - FRRENERSER o

(@) ESEWHEZRE

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly
(see note [ (h)(i)).

GD (Panyu), a PRC subsidiary of the Company, and SINOPEC
Guangdong Oil Products Company (the “Lessee”) entered
into an oil storage tanks lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) in 2004. During the year ended 3| December
2011, a request was made by the Lessee for its unilateral
termination of the Lease Agreement since | July 201 | because
of changes in the Lessee’s business operating conditions. After
repeated consultations and negotiations with the Lessee, no
substantive progress has yet been made by the parties up to
date.

ERHEERAR —T——FF

B 5 MR 2 BB R IA B AR
L ERAREREERKAZ
WEERE - RIERAEE S RUGK
B EHRERBE(RHEEI(h) ) °

RRRE BB AR EE(ER)
B AL ERAMD R B AT
BIEEADR -_ZTOFERET
AmFEEEERE(HERZED -
BE-_T——Ft+t-A=+—H8L
FE - AHAREEBGREEE
{EMETEERN -_E——FtH

—HAEK LSS - £BZRE
ABRAERSGHK - 2 ETHA

RSEEER



14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

C)

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
As a result of the above, the Group has ceased to recognise
revenue from the Lease Agreement since | July 201 I. Further,
there is accrued rental income receivable arising from initial
rent free period of the Lease Agreement (included within
trade receivables) of $109,472,000 at 3| December 201 |.
As it is uncertain that the Lease Agreement will continue to
be executed for the remaining lease term, full impairment
loss was recognised on the accrued rental income receivable
of $109,472,000 during the year ended 3| December 201 1.
Apart from the accrued rental income receivable, the Group
did not have other outstanding receivables due from the
Lessee at 3| December 201 |.

14 ESREMEBWRRIE )
(a) B5EWHREZRHE)

HRELMRRE  AEBEEAE=Z
—— St A—BRELE{EEERZ
BREA - B RZT——F
+—A=1+—8  BEHzNERA
TEYER R mEE I TBRE
WHSWA(BEEE S ERIRK
A1) 109,472,0007T ° A T EE
E#E S TR A REENT
EtEBERMERESIMARER
—E——F+ZA=1+—HILFE
R 2 BUREEE 109,472,000 JT ©
RZZE——F+=A=+—80 " K
Ll &z TEIR U S AN -
REBAERB AL EH MR (EERE
WTHRIE o

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FAREREE 2 EFHNT
year is as follows:
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
— —E-TF
$000 $'000
Fr Tt
At | January W—H—H 6,131 5,925
Impairment loss recognised EHERRERE 109,472 -
Exchange adjustment PE 5 R 2,828 206
At 3| December Rt+t—_A=+—H 118,431 6,131

At 3| December 201 I, the Group's trade receivables
of $118,431,000 (2010: $6,131,000) were individually
determined to be impaired, of which $6,435,000 (2010:
$6,131,000) are related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that the receivables are
not expected to be recovered. In addition, specific allowance
for doubtful debts of $109,472,000 was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2011 in respect of accrued rental
income receivable in relation to the Lease Agreement, which

the Lessee requested to terminate since | July 201 I.

R-ZZE—F+-_HA=+—H &
S B EREE B REZE 2 EIEK
TH 5 118431,0007L (= —F4F
6,131,0007T ) + E 6,345,000 (=
T—TH : 6131,0007T) 2 FEURGRIA
HENBR#EC XFEH  E12E
b S OB TE T RE IR A ©
PO BT —F T A=t
HItFERAEHREENTBIRE
WS W AEREERZREE
109,472,0007T * ZEMBEAEKRKR =
T——F+rA-ARKIEERE

ek °
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) TRADE RECEIVABLES THAT ARE NOT IMPAIRED

Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available to
major customers with well-established trading records. The
Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its trade

customers. Further details on the Company's credit policy are

set out in note 24(a).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

follows:

14 ESREMEBEWFIEZ)
(b) FKBEEZSEKRKIE

BT RRERME - BRERA—RIE
BRYBERMRXGREIIERP
AEBGRTESEPFA0RZE
BRH - BRAARREERR 2 E—
FHBENMEE24(@) °

WIEER K ERRERRELE S
FEMGRIR 2 BRER DTN T

The Group
A%M

2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
$’000 $'000
Fi Fi
Neither past due nor impaired REEAIRARRE 22,237 66,486
Less than | month past due wEID R —{E A 2,111 16
24,348 66,602

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
an independent customer that has good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of this
balance as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balance is considered fully recoverable. The

Group does not hold any collateral over this balance.

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BEEMERREZ B FIRTE—
HEASEBERFCHZIBILE
FAER - RIBELR - EXEM
EEDERZAEREDRERE
AAREPZEEERTBEAE
PR AERTDRR B AIAT 2 WG o
AR B 3 B % AR AR A (L (AR R

o
am ©

I5 BeERBEESEEEH
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(a) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE: () BeRRE&EEEREE
The Group The Company
AEH KA
2011 2010 2011 2010
| ZT-TF | Z¥B——F | _T-TF
$’000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Tt Fr FT
Time deposits EHITF R 14,166 21,154 5,023 =
Other cash and cash HibRe K

equivalents He%(EER 54,115 55,275 4,974 1816
68,281 76,429 9,997 1816

ERHEERAR —T——FF



I5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
(b) RECONCILIATION OF (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE

I5 MERBESEEER ()
(b) BB (EE) BREEEEE

TAXATION TO CASH USED IN OPERATIONS: FrARE 28R :
2011 2010
—gF——F —T-TF
Note $’000 $'000
k=g Fr Tt
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BrFi Rl (&) & F (143,253) 63,545
Adjustments for: AT ZIRIELFE
Interest income FEIA 4 (1,180) (1,419)
Finance costs BATS RS 5(a) 25,231 679
Depreciation and amortisation Pres N8y 5(c) 62,159 29411
Impairment loss on trade B S WA 2
receivables BEEE 109,472 -
Equity settled share-based AR E 2
payment P2 i 5(b) - 608
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEWE - KE R
property, plant and equipment Btz EES
(Yezz) 4 109 (32)
Exchange differences FEH =5 (2,124) (4,499)
Changes in working capital: EEE G
Increase in consumable parts EFEMmIL AN (14,362) (449)
Increase in trade and other B 5 REAME
receivables FRIEIE AN (63,765) (61,400)
Increase in other payables and EM A RIER
accruals TR E AN 8,362 6,423
Decrease in deferred revenue IREW R (921) (35359)
Cash used in operations KEEEFTARS (20,272) (2492)

16 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
THE GROUP
At 31 December 201 I, all of the other payables and accruals are

expected to be settled within one year.

At 3| December 2010, apart from retention payables of $19,263,000
that are expected to be settled after one year, all of the other

payables and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.

16 EfbENREARTREN

AEH

R-T——F+-_A=+—H FFEE
fhpER S IB REHRE A BHN —F A

fEfT -

R-ZE—FFE+-_F=+—H  BENM
{REL FRIA 19,263 0007TTEHIR —F 14 (&
190 - FTE B RN R REHREB ALY

BN —FARER -
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17 BANK LOANS 17 RITEX
(@) THE ANALYSIS OF THE CARRYING AMOUNT () RTEFREEHIHOT :

OF BANK LOANS IS AS FOLLOWS:

The Group
AEME
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
$°000 $000
T T
Current liabilities RBAE
Short-term bank loans HHIRITER
(note (17(b)) (KI=E17(b)) 2,400 2,400
Long-term bank loans repayable JEESkEE 2
on demand RESRITER 1,177,225 7,800
1,179,625 10,200
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Long-term bank loans RHISRITER - 1116469
1,179,625 1,126,669
(b) AT 31 DECEMBER 2011, ACCORDING TO THE b) R=F——F+-A=+—-8"
ORIGINAL REPAYMENT SCHEDULE, THE BANK BERERNERTE - RITEX
LOANS WERE REPAYABLE AS FOLLOWS: AR T 5 HARE E3E
The Group
A EE
2011 2010
—g——f| —zT-TH
$°000 $000
Ft T
Within | year or on demand R—F Ak fE E kA 2,400 2,400
After | year but within 2 years —FIREBERFA 49,273 590,015
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBBRFR 126,350 108,821
After 5 years AFE 1,001,602 425433
1,177,225 1,124,269
1,179,625 1,126,669

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011 SEBEERARART —Z——F 55



17 BANK LOANS (continued) 17 |RITER @)

(c) AT 31 DECEMBER 2011, THE BANK LOANS c) R=2——F+=-A=+—8 >
WERE SECURED AS FOLLOWS: RTERZEFREROT :
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
$°000 $'000
Ft TT
Bank loans RITE R
— secured —H 1,171,825 [,116,469
— unsecured — E I 7,800 10,200
1,179,625 1,126,669
At 3| December 201 |, the Group had banking facilities RZE—-——F+ A=+ —
totalling $1,183,825,000 (2010: $2,218,953,000), of which H AEBzRITMEEES
$1,171,825,000 (2010: $1,116,469,000) were secured by H 1,183825000 ¢ ( = & — &
certain of the Group'’s future operating leases receivables F : 2218953000 7t ) - H A
(see note 24(b)). The facilities were utilised to the extent of [,171,825000 78 ( = & — & 4 :
$1,171,825,000 (2010: $1,116,469,000). 1,116,469,0007C ) Jh A AN &£ [B & T

KRR EHE R KIE (R K&
24(b)) IR - BB AZREREE
A 1,171825000 (= F —ZF
I,116,469,0007T) ©
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17 BANK LOANS (continued)

(c) AT 31 DECEMBER 2011, THE BANK LOANS

WERE SECURED AS FOLLOWS: (continued)

As set out in note |4 to the financial statements, the Lessee
made a request for its unilateral termination of the Lease
Agreement since | July 201 |, which the Group's long-term
bank loans of $1,171,825,000 were secured by the future
operating lease receivables of the Lease Agreement. After
repeated consultations and negotiation with the Lessee, no
substantive progress has yet been made by the parties up
to date. According to the terms of the long-term banking
facilities, should there be any decrease in value of the secured
assets, the lending bank (the “Lender”) may request the
Group to replace the security or the drawn down facilities
would become repayable at the Lender’s sole discretion.
As it is uncertain that the Lease Agreement will continue
to be executed, the outstanding long-term bank loans of
$1,171,825,000 were reclassified from non-current liabilities
to current liabilities at 3| December 201 |. Subsequent to
the balance sheet date, the Group received a letter dated
2| March 2012 from the Lender requesting the Group to
provide additional fixed assets as security for the long-term
banking facilities of $1,171,825,000. The Lender would agree
to maintain the long-term banking facilities with the original
repayment schedule unchanged provided that the Group
pledges the assets under two of its subsidiaries in the PRC to
the satisfaction of the Lender by 31 May 2012. The Group
has been actively working with the Lender to provide the
necessary additional security. The directors are confident that
the Group can fulfil the Lender's request and the banking
facilities can be maintained. Up to the date of these financial
statements, the Lender has not demanded the Group to early
repay the long-term bank loans pursuant to the terms of the

long-term banking facilities.

The Group’s unsecured banking facilities of $12,000,000 (2010:
$402,000,000) are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to the Group's net asset position as well as minimum
shareholding of the controlling shareholder of the Company,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. At

3| December 201 |, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached (2010: none).
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17 BITERE)
() R=F——%+=A=+-8"

MITERZEHRBROT © (&)
W BA SRR M RE 14 BT - AR A
BHTEEkKE T ——F Lt A —

BRERIEEEHZ  MAEE
1,171,8250007 2 = EBSRITIEE =
LATE & 1725 9 R SR IE WG 1 AR
oo R % RERE AER KA
HESERABENSER EE
& - REBERARITEENGER - &
wm#zgﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ'W%Eﬁ
T(MEEADJREERAEREE R
ﬁﬁmv&F“AﬁTE%EXE
EERRZEXR - ARHEERZET
BERREENT RZT—F
+—A=t+—HZREERIRTT
E XL % 1,171,8250007C B B FE7
@ﬁﬁiﬁ“ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁomé
EAEXRBZE  AEER
——F=A=+— EWUW%AW
B - ESRAREBREEINGEE
BEERI 718250007 K HH R 1T
EE 2 - IASHE—_T——
FRHA=+—HFEBE THREN
BARMEENTABEANE
K BEAREBERRAERG S
TEMBER THFBFRARITEER -
REBEEHEEEAGE - ZH#
BN IR - EEHELAER
BEM BB EAMER - WaEHESS
BITEE  -HEATKEREXE A
IF - BEANEERAEBBRERR
HIRITE B 2 IGIR AT (B 8 K B R
TER -

£ [E 12,000,0007C ( = —Z4F -
402,000,0007T ) Z ERBIRITEE
SAREBMEEFERTZBELRE
LA R 2R B R AR AR 3R 2 AR AR RS AR P
ﬁ@'tﬂﬁ@M£$ﬂ%%ﬂi
BERLZHFRBREER - MAEE
@&E%£f BB IR EEA
BREREE R —F+=H
=+—H8  WwREREGH@ME AR
BNZH(ZT—TF ) o



17 BANK LOANS (continued)

(c) AT 31 DECEMBER 2011, THE BANK LOANS

WERE SECURED AS FOLLOWS: (continued)

In addition, one of the Group's banking facilities of $12,000,000
(2010: $12,000,000) which utilised to the extent of $7,800,000
(2010: $10,200,000), contains clauses which give the
lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at anytime irrespective of whether the Group
has complied with the covenants and met the scheduled
repayment obligations. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants and is up to date with the
scheduled repayments of bank loans. The Group does not
consider it probable that the bank will exercise its discretion
to demand repayment for so as long as the Group continues
to meet these requirements. Further details of the Group's

management of liquidity risk are set out in note 24(b).

18 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
() CURRENT TAXATION IN THE BALANCE SHEET

17 SRITER %)

©

R=ZZE——F+=A=+—8
RITERZEFERMOT - (&)
BEoh - 7S5 B /) — I8 12,000,000 7T
(ZZ—Z 4 : 12,0000007C ) 81T
BE (2 EA780000T(—E—=F
£ : 10,200,0007T) ) TS IEFIE - &
RABEEZERERERERERE
HENEEERE  MERAIEERS
BTFRERBITECEECEML -
AEEEHERZELAZBITE
W WARERRITERNBEERET
HHEHRER - REASEEERT
RITER + AEBTRAIRITA] 6L
SIEMBRERER - BEEASE
EEEESREERR ZFBEHR
FizE24(b) °

18 EERBERTZMEHR
(@) EEAMRHPAHBUALE

REPRESENTS:
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—B2——fF —T-TF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax — F AR B {MEFTERT
for the year kil - 21,552
Provisional PRC Enterprise Income Tax TP B TSR
paid (13,786) (15,858)
Current tax (recoverable)/payable RE(FER) /FENBIE (13,786) 5,694
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 18 SES@&xHP2ER»)

(continued) (b) BEERELHIEEME
(b) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES RECOGNISED: FRAREFBREHRBEEZEHS
The movements of the Group’s deferred tax liabilities during AT ¢

the year are as follows:

Depreciation allowances
in excess of the related

depreciation
BHERETEZ
TERBE
2011 2010
—E-——F —E-TF
$000 $000
Fr T
Deferred tax arising from: ELERIERE -
At | January m—H—H 7,420 7977
Exchange adjustments [ i, 52X 356 257
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(a)) ST ABEmE (HFE6() (540) (814)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 7,236 7,420
(c) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED: (c) RERZELEREEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note | (n), RIBEHFE IS5 BE |
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect RBEBEEBARRTANAENRAE B
of the cumulative tax losses of approximately $254 million 78 A EME IR S B AR T A AR SE A
(2010: $121 million) as it is not probable that future taxable FEE  AEBEARERETTHIAE
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available BESHMETL(ZE—ZF « 1218
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses of TO)ERELERBEE - AEEH
the Group's PRC subsidiaries will expire in 5 years after the AR B A RIS BB A B
relevant tax losses were incurred while tax losses for the MG R ERSFANER MR
Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not expire under the BIRITHRIESED - REBERBN
current tax legislation. BB X R 0 B s 4R N AR PR A o
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INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(d) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:
At 3| December 201 |, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to $157,669,000
(2010: $227,456,000). Deferred tax liabilities of $7,883,000
(2010: $11,373,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that
it is probable that the profits will not be distributed in the

foreseeable future.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and with
no fixed terms of repayment. The director has confirmed that he
will not request repayment within twelve months from the balance
sheet date and accordingly, the balance is shown as non-current.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The employees of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of its staff
to the retirement scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contribution under the scheme. The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with this

scheme beyond the annual contributions described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (*‘the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on |6 December 2002,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the "‘scheme”) for
the purpose of enabling the Company to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract resources that are available to the
Group and to provide the Company with a means of giving incentive
to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits
to such persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group.
The scheme remains in force for a period of |0 years from adoption

of such scheme and expires on |5 December 2012.

On 7 May 2008, the Board approved to grant options in respect of
72,400,000 ordinary shares to the Company's directors and senior
management under the scheme. The exercise periods for the above
options granted under the scheme shall end not later than 3 years
from 7 May 2008. Options were granted under a market condition.
The share options can only be exercised when the market price
of the shares of the Company is $1.2 per share or above. This
condition has been taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement.

No share option was granted to or exercised by any of the
Directors and senior management during the year ended 31
December 2011 (2010: Nil). All share options issued under the
scheme were lapsed during the year and no share option was
outstanding under the scheme as at 3| December 2011 (2010:
72,400,000 share options).
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22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 R

The Company
/NS

Number of

ordinary shares Amount
ZRERHE -0
'000 $'000
AR Tt
Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: SREE0. 10T ZZER ¢
Authorised: JEE
At 31 December 2010 and 201 | RZE—FFR-_T——F
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEZFTREE -
At 31 December 2010 and 201 | RIB—ZEN T ——F
+=—A=+—H 3,732,638 373264
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as LRI A A A WA S K 2 A
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share RE - WEERAARSZHE LIRER—
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with ERERAR - B EBERERRD AR
regard to the Company's residual assets. BEHBEEREHA -
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23 RESERVES

(a) MOVEMENTS IN COMPONENTS OF EQUITY

23 f#&E

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances

of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set

(a) RERERIBD 2 RE

REERA RS AR D Y8
HIRGEHRNHRANGAERE S

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of

R o ARBEERESARBORA
FRIVZHRNE G FITHIL0
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equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set e
out below.
The Company AR AE]
Share-based
Share Translation compensation ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BRtiaE EifE  ROFHREE 2itER At
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i ¥z i 7 7
Balance at | January 2010 R=Z-F5-f—§
ko3 710477 (542) 9811 (35,639) 684,107
Changes in equity for 2010: —Z-SFEREH .
Total comprehensive income FREENANEE
for the year - (49) - (3979) (4028)
Equity settled share-based RS RS
transactions = = 608 = 608
Balance at 3| December R-E-BF
2010 and | January 2011 +ZA=+-K
—2--%-f-H
ko33 710,477 (591) 10,419 (39,618) 680,687
Changes in equity for 2011: =F——FERHEE
Total comprehensive income FREENNER
for the year - 591 - (500,012) (499,421)
Equity settled share-based WEREEBENRS
transactions - - (10,419) 10,419 -
Balance at 3| December R-B-—-&
2011 TZA=t+-2&H% 710,477 - - (529,211) 181,266

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium and accumulated losses
which in aggregate amounted to approximately $181 million
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: $67 million). Under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for paying distributions
or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
its memorandum and articles of association and provided
that immediately following the payment of distribution or
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company's articles of association, distributions shall be payable
out of the profits or other reserves, including the share
premium account, of the Company.

ERREBRERAR =T ——FFR
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23 RESERVES (continued)
(b) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

()

(i)

(iii)

(v)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law (Revised) of the

Cayman Islands.

Special reserve
The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition in
December 2004.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policy set out in note |(s).

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises, a portion of the profits of the
Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC is required to
transfer to the statutory reserve. The amounts of profits
transferred to the statutory reserve are determined by
the board of directors of the subsidiaries according to
the articles of association. The reserve is restricted as to
use and is not available for distribution.

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the
portion of the grant date fair value of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company that
has been recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note | (m)(ii).
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23 RESERVES (continued)
(c) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concem,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and

benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optional

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose the Group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings), less cash and

cash equivalents. Capital is calculated as shareholders’ funds

plus net debt or minus net cash.

During 201 I, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2010, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio at an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders,

raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio (as defined above) was 0.67 and

0.62 as at 31 December 201 | and 2010 respectively.

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfillment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group's financial ratios
as disclosed in note |7 to the financial statements, neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.

23 &)

()
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group'’s business. The Group's exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described

below.

(a) CREDIT RISK
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents are normally placed at financial institutions
that have sound credit rating. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

Trade and other receivables

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 days from the date of billing.
Debtors with balances that are more than | month past due
are requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry and country in which customers operate and
therefore significant concentration of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 32% (2010: 87%) of the total
trade and other receivables was due from the Group's five
largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in note 4.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

C)

(b)

Hans Energy Company Limited Annual Report 2011

CREDIT RISK (continued)

Deposits with banks

The Group’s limits its exposure to credit risk by placing
deposits with financial institutions that meet the established
credit rating or other criteria. Given these high credit ratings,
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet
its obligations.

As at 3|1 December 201 I, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 22% (2010: 63%) of total cash
and cash equivalents were deposited with a financial institution
in the PRC.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. Apart from
guarantees issued by the Company in respect of banking
facilities granted to its subsidiaries as disclosed in note 28, the
Group does not provide any other guarantees which would

expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Company's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(b) LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

24 BIEREERAAES)
(b) EESREBUERMRE)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's and the
Company's non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

TRIMAKBERARR 2074
ERBENEERZHTEOHR
F15 - ERENBHOARTERER
(BREBREBOEZME  smEF
BANEEERGEER  FEZHE
X)) RAEERARBRER
B BEEHE

pay:

For bank loan subject to repayment on demand clauses which TLBRIRIT O] 2 RERNIBITHEREK
can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis BHEEMRTERMS - HES
shows the cash outflow based on the contractual repayment A RERE I NERTEEES
schedule and, separately, the impact to the timing of the cash HEnRE  WEBIRERAITE

L A] BB AR RO SR SR AR B R AN

outflows if the lender was to invoke its unconditional right to

call the loan with immediate effect. EFREEZIRERHNTE -
The Group NEH
2011 2010
§--f 2-%F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SHARRRSTH AORBER LM
Within  More than ~ More than Carrying Within ~ Morethan  More than Carrying
I'year |yearbut 2yearsbut amount Iyear  Iyearbut  2yearsbut amount
oron within within at3l oron within within ~ More than a3l
demand 1years 5 years Total December demand years 5 years 5 years Total  December
Rt=A R+=A
-Eps EE-F  BERE =B | ER BEE BEmE =1-f
REAR  BRFR  BEFA Ait BEE | NEFE  ERFN  BRfA  B8LF At HEE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i T T T T T T i T T T
Bank loans BIER 1,174352 2,483 3,041 1,179,876 1,179,625 64956 62891 198,153 54049 14325% 1126669
Other payables and accruals EENTEREER 76,004 - - 76,004 76,004 99989 - - - 99989 99989
Amount due to a director Eff—28S/38 - 198,990 - 198,990 198,990 - - - - - -
1250356 201,473 3,041 1454870 1,454,619 164945 6289! 198,153 54049 1532545 1226658
Adjustment to disclose cash flows on - REEF A2
bank loans based on lender's night to R IFf{EMSRTER
demand payment ARG A% 513 (2,483) (3,041) (251) - 763 (2503) (5520) - (408) -
1,255,629 198,990 - 1454619 1454619 172580 626428 192633 54049 1532137 1226658
The Company PN
011 2010
g% =2 2
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SRFRERER AGFERRRRE
Within ~ Morethan ~ More than Carrying Withn -~ Morethan ~ More than Carying
Iyear |yearbut 2yearsbut amount Iyer  lyearbut  2yearsbut amount
oron within within at3l oron within within at3l
demand 1years 5 years Total  December demand 2 years 5 years Total  December
A \ ®t=A
SRR BB-F EEmE SHOR | AR BEF BERE =t
BHE  ERFR BIFR CH BHE BN EREM ERERM At Faf
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T Fr T v T it T
Other payables and accruals EfENTERHEER 1,069 - - 1,069 1,069 1069 - - 1089 1069
Amount due to a director Eff—2E2 7508 - 30,000 - 30,000 30,000 = = = = =
1,069 30,000 - 31,069 31,069 1069 - - 1,069 1069
Financial guarantees issued: ERHZERER -
Madimum amount of uaranteed (note 28) 132 S8 (H208) 7,800 - - 7,800 - 10200 - - 10200 -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(o)

INTEREST RATE RISK (continued)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowings. The Group’s bank borrowings at 3| December
201 | were issued at variable rates and fixed rates and
therefore expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group's and the Company’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
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(i) Interest rate profile 0 FIEBER
The Group The Company
A5H LN
2011 2010 2011 2010
-3--f Z2-%F -3--f —3-%%
Effective Fffective Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount | interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
fUTES ] BRI &F BRA= ki | {7l oF
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T o T
Net fixed rate ER(E) /R
(borrowings)/deposits:  F4 :
Time deposits EHER 0.45% - 0.60% 14,166 191% 21,154 0.45% 5,023 - -
Bank loans HTEH 5.40% (616,750) 540% (587615) - - - -
(602,584) (S66461) 5,023 -
Net variable rate HE(BR)/ B
(borrowings)/deposits:  F4 :
Cash at bank TR 0.01%=1.31% 54115 | 001%-117% 55275 0.01% 4974 001% 1816
Bank loans HKIER 1.84% - 6.39% (562,875) | 1.78%-602% (539,054) - - - -
(508,760) (483779) 4974 1816
Total net (bomowings)/ ([&8)/F5E
deposits ] (1,111,344) (1,050240) 9,997 1816
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BRI

At 3| December 201 [, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of |00 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group's loss for the year and accumulated
losses by approximately $5,088,000 (2010: decrease/
increase the Group'’s profit for the year and increase/
decrease the Group's accumulated losses by $3,772,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for all non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2010.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(d) CURRENCY RISK

()

(i)

(iii)

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
billings of storage, transshipment and port income that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars (“USD").

As the Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant. As such, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with the
Group's borrowings.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at
the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposures are expressed in HKD.

24 BIEREERAAEE)

d) E¥EE

0]

(i)

(i)
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37 7T ([ 7T )) B2 T )
% AEERAETRLTE
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ERNABREB 2SI
SN2 BT 2 HMME SR
RENTOR - ARBEEEHR
RN N TRy - AR ERE R
BASENINE - BRFZE
MR — E AR X AKE -

AEE 2 FABEERAERE
RZEBRBZMBEEREA -
it EIRES A TREIAREE 2
EEEHREMEAZEHBR

(& o
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VIR E0) -t 0, 4
TRIBARERGEE B mE
RAABBEREEEUIN
ERIEEEREENARE
MELZEBERFE - RE
22 - BRREAETI
o

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

United States United States

Dollars Dollars

ESH ETT

$°000 $000

Fr T

Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A fEW R IE 424 591
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEEEE 11,640 7,097
Overall exposure to currency risk B R EEE R 12,064 7,688

98-99



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR M RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTIIR + BAEBAERIN)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(e) FAIR VALUES (e)

24 BIERREERAAERE)

DRE
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All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

The fair value of bank loans are estimated as the present value
of future cash flows, discounted at current market interest
rates for similar financial instruments.

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free and
with no fixed terms of repayment. Given these terms, it is not
meaningful to disclose their fair values.

The fair value of trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and other payables and accruals are not materially

different from their carrying amounts.

25 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) THE GROUP AS LESSEE

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings, which fall due
as follows:

25

FEeMIAEZ ABRSBEEARN
T ——FRZZE-ZTFT+=A
=t—BZARBEEEERTMH -

RITERZAREARKRBE S RE
ZBE  BEUSRT A ZNEH
BN EYTIR T AR ©

ENESFTIARERR - 28 ME
BlE R o MR B IRR IR
HEBRAARBEYTESRE -

B REMEWHIE ReFRE
FERE A REMBRENRIA KR
ERZAREEES A ZREEL
BERER -

RERERS

(@) AEEERFEA

REEA  AEERBETIRBZ L
REFEEHEAINZRRRERS
EFEZEIHANT

The Group
A%H

2011 2010
—E——F —TTF
$°000 $'000
Tt T
Within one year —FR 6,756 5,063
After one year but within five years —FREBRAFRN 5,500 750
12,256 5813

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and director’s quarter. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two years with fixed rentals.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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25 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (contrued) 25 REHERE(2)
(b) THE GROUP AS LESSOR (b) AEBEHRHBEA
The Group leases out certain dock and storage facilities under AEBIRFELETAE LS TIEE
operating leases. disEasyiii
Rental and storage income earned during the year was FRATRE 2 S M FRALE
approximately $140 million (2010: $153 million). The leases L4OETT(ZZE—F4 : | 53187T) °
are negotiated for a lease term of | to |5 years (2010: | to 20 HEDNEBR—Z2+ARF(ZZE—F
years). None of the leases includes contingent rentals. F -2+ F) 2FHHETE
& ZEHEREBIFIAES

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non- AEBRBENAIRE LB ERE

cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows: Wz RRFIEASLFEANT

The Group
TEH

2011 2010
—F——F —
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Within one year —FR 83,520 136,080
After one year but within five years —FRIEAFNA 145,174 436,452
After five years HF% 28,030 [,019,630
256,724 1,592,162
During the year ended 31 December 201 I, a lessee requested (Z_T——Ft+-H=+—HIt
to unilaterally terminate the lease agreement, further details FE - —RERBABTEERKIE
are set out in note |4 to the financial statements. As a result, HEWZ  FERRIEREM T
the above analysis does not include the relevant operating (S )2 A 1155 T 2 N AR
lease receivables of the lease agreement at 3| December EEN T —Ft+t_A=1+—

201 1. AR ERE R KSR -

26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 26 EAESE

At 31 December 201 |, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and storage
facilities amounted to $20 million (2010: $34 million).

At 3| December 201 |, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided in
the financial statements in respect of terminal development and
acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to approximately
$145 million (2010: $161 million).

R-—T——&F+—-A=+—H K&£H
I EAEE I B B O M BT R b 1E
HEFTHERAI BT BT EARH

AEHEBOEIT(ZZE—ZF : 03418
JT) °

RZB——F+="A=+—0H  £5H
B RIGEA LB EE O M7 R e (F
AR ERES S A B RN I B R
REBEBZEARRZALNR 4ET(=

T—F4E : | 4I{BIT) ©
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28
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 3| December 201 I, the Group entered into
the following significant transactions with related parties:

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION
Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

27

BBL ZEARS
BE-T——5t-A=t+ AILEE
P ARERME A TEARS ¢

TREEBAESMHE
IZEREABMEREINARRE
E(RME7THRE) RETHRSFHEE (R
BIFESIER) < &8 - #HIMT

2011 2010

—B-—F —FTTF

$°000 $'000

Fr Fit

Short-term employee benefits 72 B B 12 A 8,084 9,715
Post-employment benefits BRI RN 127 L4
Equity settled share-based payments iR EE 2 R H - 213
8,211 10,042

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
The directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be
made against the Company under any of the guarantees. The
maximum liability of the Company at the balance sheet date under
the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn down by the
subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantees, being $7,800,000
(2010: $10,200,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantees as its fair value cannot be reliably measured using
observable market data and its transaction price was $Nil (2010:

$Nil).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 3| December 201 |, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Vand
Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 201 |
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and five new standards which

30 EHEMERBE-ZFE——F
+ZA=+—HLEFEEKRE
M2 1ER] ~ R ERI R RER
BEER 2 &
HEABBRETIHEE - BELHH
AGCEHSEET RABHTEL -
EBRBE-T——F+-A=+—AI1t
G MR AR IR R AR AR BT T R
* o BB - RERITEAGE
TasE AL BB AR -

are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 201 | and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

NN TIN=R - At Y o
Z e R ER
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: (CEBIT I REZER)E 757 | July 2011
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets BRI - [T A - #FE) —T——%+A—H
—PEEDHIEE
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax: (BB ETERNE | 255 A - | January 2012
Recovery of underlying assets [HrE 8 — AL RE - YfE] —E——_Ff—H—H
Vizlz b=V
Amendments to HKAS |, Presentation of financial (CEBGFTERDE RIS | July 2012
statements — Presentation of items of other [ HEZZH | — 25 E M —E——-f+HA—H
comprehensive income FENEIEA
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements CEBIISHREZER)EE 1055 | January 2013
=i s e —T—=F—H—H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities (CEBBIEEREXERYEE 1255 | January 2013
[E B fe o 15 —T—=F—H—H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement (CEBIMBHRELERNE 135K - ' January 2013
[ EE 2] —E—=%—H—H
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (201 1) (CEBEFHERNE75R - | January 2013

[ BT FHEZ(ZE——F) —T—=F—H—H
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits CEBZEHERNE 1958 | January 2013
(&1&85]) - [1ES 57/ —T—=F—H—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (BEMBMELRIDFESS - | January 2015
[ TA/ —E—hF—HA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application but is not yet in a position to state whether those
amendments and new standards would have a significant impact on
the Group's or the Company’s results of operations and financial

position.
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Five Year Financial Summary

R FHBHE

Year ended 3| December EHZE+=A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7THI7R)

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=+—HLEFE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—TTLF ZFTN\F ZTTNF —T-TF |=F——F
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000
T Tz Tz T Fr
RESULTS 3
Turmover =E < 160,286 165,166 158,944 159,615 144,884
Profit/(loss) before taxation — BRFHATRH] (&) 78,302 72,490 67,038 63545 | (143,253)
Income tax IS (6986) (8972) (19,085) (20,738) 182
Profit/(loss) attributable to A RIRRER FE(S
equity shareholders #wH, (E518)
of the Company 64,014 56,395 41,746 37,020 | (133,930)
Profit/(loss) attributable to non- FE¥ZEfEHERS FE(L
controlling interests wAl (&) 7,302 7,123 6,207 5,787 9,141)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FRmF, (EE) 71316 63518 47,953 42,807 | (143,071)
At 3| December
W+=R=+—-H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ZT+FE ZZETN\F ZTTNE —T-TF | ZB——F
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000
T T T T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERE&E
Total assets BERT 915967 1,097,930 1,647,571 1899914 | 2,009,661
Total liabilities BfEeE 471,291 559,274 1,056,466 1243406 | 1,464,727
Non-controlling interests FEFERR I o 31,140 40,291 46,567 54,117 47,449
Total equity attributable to equity ZANA FIARER FE(G
Shareholders of the Company ~ #8#E% 413,536 498,365 544,538 602,391 497,485
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